
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219                                                  
P a g e  1 | 2 

 
 

Councilmembers 
Position No. 
1. Tod Gunther 
2. Barbara Ford 
3. William Birkes, Deputy Mayor 
4. Dave Harman 
5. Nicola McDonald 
6. Josh Penner 
7. Scott Drennen 

 

 
 

ORTING CITY COUNCIL  
Regular Business Meeting Agenda 

(REVISED) 
Orting Public Safety Building 

401 Washington Ave. SE, Orting, WA 
 

April 27, 2016 
7 p.m. 

Audience members are welcome to speak on any topic on the agenda after Councilmembers have finished their discussion. 
 

Mayor Joachim Pestinger 
 

7:00 P.M. - CALL MEETING TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL 
 
REQUEST FOR ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

• Minutes of April 13, 2016 
• Payroll and Claims Warrants 

Motion:  Move to approve Consent Agenda as prepared. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are 
encouraged to do so at this time.  When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your 
name and address for the record.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes. Thank you for attending. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 

• Civil Service Appointment, Greg Hogan ● Mayor Pestinger 
• Sound Transit – ST3, Sounder Station at McMillan 
 

COMMITTEE AND COUNCIL STANDING REPORTS: 
  Council Standing Committees and other Reports 

• Rules - CM Harman/CM Drennen 
• Transportation – CM Penner/CM McDonald 
• Emergency Preparedness – CM Drennen/CM Ford 
• Mayor Report – Mayor Pestinger 
• Miscellaneous activity reports, i.e. PSRC, special meetings, etc. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
1) AB16-33 – Closed Record Hearing -Village Green Ph.1 Div. 7 ● Roger Wagoner 

Motion:  Move to approve or deny the Planning Commission recommendation on the Final 
Plat Phasing submittal of Village Green, Phase 1-Division 7. 

 
2) AB16-34 – Public Hearing – Resolution No. 2016-19, Animal License Fee Changes  

     ● CM Ford 
    Motion:  Move to adopt Resolution No. 2016-19, adopting the new annual pet license fees  
    that are set forth pursuant to OMC 6-3A-3(E).  
 
3) AB16-35 – Public Hearing –  Resolution No. 2016-20, Six Year TIP 2017-2022         

     ● JC Hungerford, Parametrix-City Engineer 



Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219                                                  
P a g e  2 | 2 

 
 

No Motion, Public Hearing Only – This will be brought back for action at the May 11, 2016 
regular Council meeting. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: 

 
4) AB16-36 - Ordinance No. 2016-983, Astound Broadband Franchise Agreement              

      ● Mayor Pestinger  
Motion: to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-983, granting to Astound Broadband, LLC, a limited 
liability company, a nonexclusive telecommunications franchise to install, construct, maintain, 
repair, and operate a telecommunications system within the public rights of way. 

 
● Emergency Evacuation Bridge System ● CM Drennen 
 
● Economic Development RFQ ● Mayor Pestinger 

 
● SWAT V-150 Vehicle ● Mayor Pestinger/Chief Drake 
 

5) AB16-37 - Bridgewater Plat Alternative Analysis ● Mayor Pestinger 
 Motion: to authorize the use of up to $10,000 of Transportation Impact Fees to reimburse the 
 owner of the Bridgewater Plat for alternative plat layout analysis that would mitigate the 
 impact of the City’s planned SW Connector roadway. 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
6) AB16-40 - Ordinance No. 2016-981, Animal Control ● CM Gunther          

   Motion: to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-981, relating to nuisance regulations relating to dogs    
   and cats; amending Orting Municipal Code Section 6-3A-6A7. 

 
7) AB16-41 - Interlocal Agreement, Nisqually Indian Tribe ● CM Gunther                

   Motion: to approve the Interlocal Agreement with the Nisqually Indian Tribe for Jail Services. 
 

 8) AB16-42 - Approval of Low Bidder for Landscape Contract for Maintenance of City  
         Parks ● CM Birkes 

    Motion: to approve low bidder Frost Landscape to provide landscape maintenance to City   
    Parks and Right-of-Way from May1, 2016 to August 30, 2016 for the amount of $32,561.66,  
    and for the Mayor to enter into contract with the vendor per the contract provided to Council.  
  
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are 
encouraged to do so at this time.  When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your 
name and address for the record.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes. Thank you for attending. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
    Motion:  Move to Adjourn. 

Upcoming Meetings: 
Next Regular Meeting:  May 11, 2016 (PSB) 



1 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  A p r i l  1 3 ,  2 0 1 6  
 

 
 
 

Mayor Joachim Pestinger called the meeting to order with the flag salute at 7:00 pm in the 
Orting Public Safety Building.  Roll call found in attendance Deputy Mayor William Birkes, 
Councilmembers Scott Drennen, Barbara Ford, Josh Penner, Tod Gunther, Dave Harman and 
Nicola McDonald. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 
 
City Employees Mark Bethune, City Administrator 

Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
Bill Drake, Police Chief 
Scott Larson, Treasurer 

 
Professional 
Representatives 

Jay Long, Attorney – Kenyon Disend 
JC Hungerford, Engineer – Parametrix 

 
Visitors (signed in) Chris Hopfauf Peggy Ryals 
 

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 
 Mayor added Zoo and Trek Authority Board discussion to the 

Mayors report. 
  
 Councilmember Harman asked that Rules Committee be added to 

the Committee and Standing Reports. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
 Councilmember Ford moved to approve the Consent Agenda as 

prepared.  Second by Councilmember Gunther.  Motion carried (7-0). 
 

COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
 Chris Hopfauf discussed opposition on the V-150 SWAT vehicle. 

Noted the cost that is budgeted for $500 and wondered why the 
City would consider this when it is already at a deficit; discussed it 
being stored at the Soldiers Home and how it can be ready in an 
emergency if you have to go and get it at another facility. 

  
 Tony Schneider discussed Support U located at the Saints Cosmas 

and Damian Catholic Church which fosters caregiver wellness. He 
noted the dates and times of the classes and that they are free. 

  
 Patty Ryals discussed the V-150 SWAT vehicle and thought the 

initial intent was to use as an emergency preparedness vehicle and 
now it being a tactical vehicle and not being suited for the City. 

 Ben Hilderbrand noted he agrees with the previous comments 
made regarding the V-150 SWAT vehicle. 

 

ORTING CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
Public Safety Building, 401 Washington Ave. SE 

April 13, 2016 



 
 

2 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  A p r i l  1 3 ,  2 0 1 6  
 

PRESENTATIONS:  (7:11) 
                                                  
 Chief Drake presented Detective Mike Cassatt with the Jim Dowd 

Award in appreciation for his faithful service to Orting.  
 
Mayor recessed the meeting at 7:17 p.m. for 5 minutes for pictures 
and for citizens/staff to congratulate Detective Cassatt. He 
reconvened the meeting at 7:22 p.m. 

 
COMMISSION REPORTS:  (7:22) 
 
Planning Commission Commissioner Hoyt reported on the pet code, adding exotic 

animals; still working on the livestock code; discussed the real 
estate signs and still working with DR Horton.  

 
COMMITTEE AND STANDING REPORTS:  (7:24) 
 
Public Works Councilmember McDonald reported on processes that will be 

taken on for the maintenance of Levee; Public Works Shop and 
the new building; and current penalties for water billing. 

 
Finance  Councilmember Ford discussed that the committee meeting will 

meet on the first Monday before Council meeting at 4:30 p.m.; 
discussed the finance report; animal license fee changes to be 
brought forward to Council at the next meeting; and discussed the 
cemetery fund. 

 
Public Safety Councilmember Gunther reported on community policing; building 

success of the prior committees; river signage; speeding issues; 
policing award and submitted Officer Taylor; discussed crime 
signage, police discretionary fund and a robust community 
policing model. 

  
Mayor Report Mayor Pestinger discussed the Zoo and Trek Authority Board 

appointment.  
 
Councilmember Penner moved to authorize the City to support 
Justin Evans for Position No. 2 of the Zoo and Trek Authority 
Board.  Second by Councilmember Ford.  Motion carried (7-0). 
 
Discussed the Puget Sound Gateway long term project; 
discussed still being on track for the mini train station ST3 project; 
attended the Mid-County Leadership Team meeting which 
focused on Emergency Management and the Cascadia Rising 
event. Mayor Pestinger encourage citizens to have enough 
provisions to sustain themselves for three days in case of an 
emergency.  
City Administrator Bethune gave an update on the May 20th 
Evacuation Drill event that is being planned for the City of Orting 
which would start at 9 a.m. 
 
Discussion took place regarding the Daffodil Parade and what a 
huge successful turnout the City of Orting had. It was also 



 
 

3 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  A p r i l  1 3 ,  2 0 1 6  
 

mentioned that the Orting High School Band won Best Overall 
Band. 

  
Rules Councilmember Harman reported the Committee discussed the 

scope and noted the Rules Committee will keep in line with what 
was the Community and Government Affairs Committee and 
handle those issues that were under that committee including 
Economic Development. He also noted he will be bringing 
forward the Sponsorship policy that Councilmember Ford was 
working on; he noted he would like to get a survey out the 
Builders and have them rate the City on its permitting/building 
processes. He also noted he represented the City at the PSRC 
meeting where they discussed Phase III and noted there is an 
survey for the ST3 Project and citizens should go 
to www.soundtransit3.org to take the survey online. 

  
Miscellaneous Councilmember Ford asked if she could add to new business- 

discussion on Council Retreat. 
 

OLD BUSINESS:  (7:52) 
 
Emergency Evacuation 
Bridge System 

Councilmember Drennen reported that they are still looking at the 
first phase of this project which is the ROW on Rocky Road; he 
discussed the May 20th Evacuation Drill and noted working with 
the School. Councilmember Gunther added they are working on 
an answer sheet to provide to the community. 

  
AB16-31- SWAT V-150 
Vehicle 

Chief Drake presented the Mayor/Council/Staff and citizens with a 
PowerPoint presentation regarding the V-150 vehicle. 
 
Councilmember Gunther moved to authorize the City to proceed 
with the procurement of this vehicle with a limitation that its use 
and badging shall be for search and rescue purposes only. Second 
by Councilmember Drennen. 
 
Councilmember Penner move to amend the motion to define 
“Search and Rescue”. Second by Councilmember McDonald. 
 
Roll Call vote on amendment to motion. Motion carried (5-2, Birkes 
& McDonald).  
 
Roll Call vote on original motion with amendment. Motion carried (4-
3, Birkes, McDonald & Penner). 

  
Economic 
Development RFQ 

Consensus with Council to postpone until the April 27, 2016 
meeting. 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
AB16-30 (First Read) 
Ordinance No. 2016-
983, Astound 
Broadband Franchise 
Agreement 

Consensus to approve the first reading and add the franchise 
agreement to the April 27, 2016 agenda as an action item. 

  

http://www.soundtransit3.org/


 
 

4 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  A p r i l  1 3 ,  2 0 1 6  
 

AB16-32 RCO Grant 
Application Authorizing 
Resolutions 2016-18(a) 
& (b) 

Deputy Mayor Birkes moved to adopt the RCO Authorizing 
Resolution No. 2016-18(a) from WA. Wildlife and Recreation 
Program and RCO Authorizing Resolution No. 2016-18(b) from 
Land and Water Conservation Fund for grant funding assistance 
for Gratzer Park Athletic Field. Second by Councilmember 
McDonald. Motion carried (7-0). 

  
AB16-33 Temporary 
City Clerk Contract 

City Administrator Bethune explained the need for a temporary 
City Clerk since the current Clerk’s last day is April 29, 2016 and 
the application process will not be complete by then. 
 
Deputy Mayor Birkes moved to accept the temporary City Clerk 
contract for Jane Montgomery, beginning May 2, 2016. Second by 
Councilmember Ford. Motion carried (7-0). 

  
Council Retreat Councilmember Ford discussed the Spring  

Council Retreat and thought it would be a good idea to get a date 
and time set. 
 
Consensus was that the Spring Council Retreat should be set for 
Sunday, May 22, 2016 at 1 p.m. 

  
COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
 None. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
 Mayor Pestinger recessed to Executive Session at 10:29 p.m. to 

 discuss potential litigation, as authorized by RCW 42.30.110(i) 
which would last15 minutes with no action to follow.  

  
 Mayor Pestinger called for a10 minute extension to the Executive 

Session.  
  
 Mayor Pestinger reconvened the Council meeting at 10:54 p.m. 
 

 
ADJOURN: 
 Deputy Mayor Birkes moved to adjourn.  Second by 

Councilmember Ford.  Motion carried (7-0). 
 
Meeting ended at 10:55 p.m. 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
               ____________________________                          ____________________________ 
                        Joachim Pestinger, Mayor                                 Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 

























- 1 -  

City Of Orting 
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-33 
SUBJECT: Close Record Hearing – 
Village Green, Phase One-Division 7, 
Final Planned Development and Plat 

Agenda Item #: AB16-33 
For Agenda of: 04/27/16 
Department:     Planning 

Date Submitted: 02/26/16 
 

Orting Staff & Professional 
Representatives 

 

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0  
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0  
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0  
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: 
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner X 
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor ☐Councilmember ☐Committee Chair ☒City Administrator 

 
Attachments: City of Orting Staff Report 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The applicant requests Final Plat approval for Phase 1 Division 7 of the subject development, pursuant 
to OMC 12-6.  The initial Village Green preliminary subdivision (PP01-03) was approved by the Orting 
City Council in 1993.  Divisions 1, 2, 3 and 5 of that subdivision were constructed.  In 2001, the remaining 
divisions (4, 6, 7 and 8) were redesigned and approved as a combined Preliminary Planned Development 
(PD01-01) and Subdivision (PP02-01).  In 2016, Mitchell Development requested approval to phase final 
platting of Division 7 in two sections.  Phase 1 will have 32 single family lots and Phase 2 (to be 
approved at a later date) will have 45 single family lots.  No change in density from the approved 77 
units is proposed.  The Administration approved the minor amendment for phasing on February 3, 2016.  
This includes the construction of Williams Street NW and Van Ogle Lane NW as a “loop”.  Lots 31 and 32 
will be accessed by a private easement extending from the end of Van Ogle Lane NW.  The average lot 
size is 7,550 square feet.  This recommendation pertains only to the Phase 1 final plat for 32 lots of the 
Division. 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to approve/deny the Planning 
Commission recommendation on the Final Plat phasing submittal of 
Village Green, Division 7, Phase One. 

 







































City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-34 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – Resolution No. 
2016-19, Animal License Fee Changes 

Agenda Item #:  AB16-34  
For Agenda of: 4/27/16 
Department: Finance   
Date Submitted: 4/22/16  

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune  Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: enter a timeline if applicable 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: enter Finance information here if you 

want to embellish on fiscal impact and fund 
source. 

Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Resolution No. 2016-19; comparable 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 An analysis of time sheets indicates the city’s labor/benefits/supplies expense is about $15,000 
annually.  The revenue from license fees is estimated at $6,500 for 2016 and there were $2,300 in fines 
for 2015.  Currently the city charges approximately 40% of the license fees of comparable cities.  
Raising license fees to regional rates would better cover expense for animal control.  Staff and the 
Finance Committee are recommending a reduced rate for seniors. 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  This was brought to the Finance 
Committee and recommended for approval. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 2016-19, 
adopting the new annual pet license fees that are set forth pursuant 
to OMC 6-3A-3(E). 

 



1 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 19 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE NEW ANNUAL PET 
LICENSE FEES THAT ARE SET FORTH PURSUANT TO 
ORTING MUNICIPAL CODE 6-3A-3(E) 

 
WHEREAS, the City has adopted annual licensing requirements for dogs and cats over six 

months of age which requirements have been codified at Chapter 6-3A of the Orting Municipal 
Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is required pursuant to OMC 6-3A-3(E) to establish by 
resolution, the annual license fees for cats and dogs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the public health, safety 
and welfare to adopt the annual license fees as set forth herein; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  Adoption of Annual Pet License Fees.  Pursuant to OMC 6-3A-3(E) the 
annual pet license fees for dogs and cats shall be: 
               Senior Rate 

A. Dog, neutered or spayed $10.00   $15.00         $10.00 
B. Cat, neutered or spayed $10.00   $15.00         $10.00 
C. Dog, intact   $20.00   $60.00         $35.00 
D. Cat, intact   $20.00   $60.00         $35.00 

  
 Section 2.  Effective Date.  The pet license fees as set forth herein shall be effective upon 
passage of this resolution.   
 
 PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON 
THE 27TH  DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 
 
       CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Joachim Pestinger, Mayor  
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 



Cities Altered Unaltered Altered Unaltered Altered Unaltered Altered Unaltered
Algona** $16.00 $60.00 $8.00 $30.00 $16.00 $60.00 $6.00 $30.00
Bonney Lake** $16.00 $60.00 $8.00 $30.00 $12.00 $60.00 $6.00 $30.00
Buckley $15.00 $30.00 $10.00 $20.00 $15.00 $30.00 $10.00 $20.00
Dupont $20.00 $60.00 $20.00 $60.00 $20.00 $60.00 $20.00 $60.00
Edgewood $16.00 $60.00 $8.00 $30.00 $10.00 $65.00 $4.00 $35.00
Milton** $16.00 $60.00 $8.00 $30.00 $12.00 $60.00 $6.00 $30.00
Pacific** $30.00 $90.00 $20.00 $90.00 $30.00 $90.00 $12.00 $90.00
Pierce County Unicorporated $20.00 $55.00 $10.00 $30.00 $12.00 $55.00 $5.00 $30.00
Puyallup** $14.00 $60.00 $7.00 $30.00 $10.00 $60.00 $5.00 $30.00
Sumner** $16.00 $60.00 $8.00 $30.00 $12.00 $60.00 $6.00 $30.00

Average $17.90 $59.50 $10.70 $38.00 $14.90 $60.00 $8.00 $38.50
Orting $10.00 $20.00 $10.00 $20.00 $10.00 $20.00 $10.00 $20.00

Recommendation $15.00 $60.00 $10.00 $35.00 $15.00 $60.00 $10.00 $35.00
**Serviced by Metro Animal Control

PET LICENSE FEES COMPARABLES - 2015
Dogs Cats

Rate Senior Rate Rate Senior Rate



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-35 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING ONLY – 
Resolution No. 2016-20, adoption of the 
2017-2022 Six Year Transportation 
Improvement Program 

Agenda Item #:  AB16-35  
For Agenda of: April 27, 2016  
Department:   Public Works   
Date Submitted: April 22, 2016   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune  Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin x Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford x 
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Resolution No. 2016-20; 2017-2022 TIP 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
This is an annual action that must be done by July 1.  The updated TIP includes the upcoming projects 
for the Transportation Benefit District. 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  PUBLIC HEARING ONLY- this item will come back 
for adoption at the May 11, 2016 Council meeting. 

 



- 1 - 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-20 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 

WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE 2017-2022 SIX-YEAR 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, state law provides at RCW 35.77.010 that, pursuant to one or more hearings, 

the City Council shall by July 1st of each year prepare and adopt a comprehensive transportation 
program (Transportation Improvement Program) for the ensuing six calendar years; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act requires (RCW 36.70A.070) that the City of 

Orting Comprehensive Plan include a transportation element that is consistent with the City’s 
six-year Transportation Improvement Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s adopted comprehensive plan at the Transportation Appendix, 

page TA-13, incorporates by reference the updated Transportation Improvement Program as part 
of the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program is reviewed annually by 

the City Council, including conducting a public hearing to obtain citizen input on the Program; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City duly noted and conducted a public hearing regarding amendments 

and updates to the Transportation Improvement Program on April 27, 2016; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the City’s 2017 – 2022 Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program following such annual review; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  2017–2022 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program Adopted.  The 
City of Orting hereby adopts the 2017–2022 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and by this reference fully incorporated herein.  Said 
Transportation Improvement Program is adopted with an effective date of July 1, 2016 and the 
appendix to the Transportation element of the City of Orting Comprehensive Plan is amended, as 
provided therein, to include the updated 2017-2022 Transportation Improvement Program. 

 
Section 2.  Submittal to Secretary of Transportation.  The Mayor is requested to direct the 

City Administrator to forward the adopted Transportation Improvement Program to the Secretary 
of Transportation as required by RCW 35.77.010(3). 



- 2 - 
 

 
 PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THE 
11th DAY OF MAY, 2016. 
 
 
       CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Joachim Pestinger, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
John P. Long, Jr., 
Kenyon Disend, PLLC 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 5/11/16 
Passed by the City Council: 5/11/16 
Resolution No.: 2016-20 



- 3 - 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
(Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program;  2017 – 2022) 



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

6 1 SR 162 TWLTL 6 P 0.14 ALL 9/1/2015 466 466 466 No

SR 162 (Washington Avenue) 12

from: Cardinal Lane to: Leber

Rechannelization, minor widening. Totals 466 466 466

6 2 Kansas Street Regrade 3 P 0.5 GS ALL 1/1/2017 2,544 2,544 2,544 No

from: Harman to: Calistoga

Regrade, sidewalks, storm, sewer.

Totals 2,544 2,544 2,544

7 3 Calistoga Street W. 3 P 0.7 mi. GP SWO ALL 1/1/2018 4,028 4,028 4,028 No

from: Corrin Avenue to: Puyallup River Bridge
Regrade, sidewalks, curb and gutter, planter strips, 
parking, sewer, storm, water.

Asphalt Overlay 2013

Block Number:

200,300,400, 500, 600, 700, 800 Totals 4,028 4,028 4,028

7 4 Eldredge Avenue NW Regrade 3 P 0.2 GOS ALL 1/1/2019 1,219 1,219 1,219

Eldredge Avenue NW

from: Whitesell St. NW to: Calistoga St. W

Regrade, paving, parking, sidewalks, sewer, storm.

Block Number:

100, 200

(Also scheduled for chipseal-- Priority # 8) Totals 1,219 1,219 1,219

6 5 Whitehawk Blvd/SR 162  Intersection Improvement 3 P N/A ALL 1/1/2017 636 636 636 Yes

Whitehawk Boulevard 12

from:       to:    

Signalize intersection with existing lane configurations. Totals 636 636 636

7 6 Whitehawk Blvd NW. 7 P 0.37 ALL 1/1/2016 38.13 38.13 38.13 No

from: Washington Ave NE to: Orting Ave NW

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

100, 200, 300 Totals 38.13 38.13 38.13

7 7 Orting Ave NW 7 P 0.13 ALL 1/1/2016 14.74 14.74 14.74 No

from: Orting Ave NW to: Callendar St. NW

Chip/Seal

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

Page 1 of 10



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

Block Number:

400, 500 Totals 14.74 14.74 14.74

7 8 Skinner Way SW 7 P 0.27 ALL 1/1/2016 35.101 35.101 35.101 No

from: Calistoga St. W to: Grinnel Ave SW

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

500, 600 Totals 35.101 35.101 35.101

7 9 McMahon Lane SW 7 P 0.09 ALL 1/1/2016 8.674 8.674 8.674 No

from: Beckett Ln SW to: Cul-de-sac

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

100, 200 Totals 8.674 8.674 8.674

7 10 Beckett Lane SW 7 P 0.14 ALL 1/1/2016 17.128 17.128 17.128 No

from: Harman Way S to: Maple Ln SW

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

100 Totals 17.128 17.128 17.128

7 11 Whitehawk Ct NW 7 P 0.03 ALL 1/1/2016 8.311 8.311 8.311 No

from: Whitehawk Blvd to: Dead End

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

500 Totals 8.311 8.311 8.311

7 12 Belfair St SW 7 P 0.04 ALL 1/1/2016 2.75 2.75 2.75 No

from: Skinner Way SW to: Belfair Court SW

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

800 Totals 2.75 2.75 2.75

7 13 Belfair Ct SW 7 P 0.05 ALL 1/1/2016 4.4 4.4 4.4 No

from: Belfari Ave NW to: Dead End

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

500 Totals 4.4 4.4 4.4

7 14 Corrin Ave. SW 7 P 0.18 ALL 1/1/2016 1.65 1.65 1.65 No

from: Calistoga St W to: Bridge St. SW

Page 2 of 10



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

100, 200 Totals 1.65 1.65 1.65

7 15 Coplan St SW 7 P 0.08 ALL 1/1/2016 14.757 14.757 14.757 No

from: Grinell Ave SW to: Cul-de-sac

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

300, 400 Totals 14.757 14.757 14.757

7 16 Leber ST NE 7 P 0.06 ALL 1/1/2016 13.96 13.96 13.96 No

from: Washington Avenue N. to: Varner AV NE

Sidewalk Replacement

Block Number:

100 Totals 13.96 13.96 13.96

7 17 Calistoga Street W. 7 P 0.53 ALL 1/1/2016 117.7 117.7 117.7 No

from: Corrin Ave NW to: Skinner Way SW

Sidewalk Replacement

Block Number:

100, 200, 300, 400, 500, 600, 700 Totals 117.7 117.7 117.7

7 18 Bridge St. SW 7 P 0.073 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Eldredge to: Corrin

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

200 Totals

Page 3 of 10



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

7 18 Coplan CT SW 7 P 0.02 ALL 1/1/2016 3.971 3.971 3.971 No

from: Coplan St to: Cul-de-sac

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

800 Totals 3.971 3.971 3.971

7 18 Icey ST SW 7 P 0.16 ALL 1/1/2016 19.78 19.78 19.78 No

from: Grinnell AVE SW to: Cul-de-sac

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

200, 300 Totals 19.78 19.78 19.78

7 18 Brown St SE 7 P 0.17 ALL 1/1/2016 19.08 19.08 19.08 No

from: Washington Ave S to: Cul-de-sac

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

300, 500 Totals 19.08 19.08 19.08

7 19 Brown Way SE 7 P 0.12 ALL 1/1/2016 14 14 14 No

from: Cul-de-sac to: Washington Ave S

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

400 Totals 14 14 14

7 20 Washingotn Ave SE 7 P 0.16 ALL 1/1/2016 18.55 18.55 18.55 No

from: Brown Way SE to: Brown St. SE

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

600, 700 Totals 18.55 18.55 18.55

7 21 Leber Ct. NW 7 P 0.03 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Eldredge to: Dead End

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

300 Totals

7 22 Taylor St. SW 7 P 0.08 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Eldredge to: Deeded

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

Page 4 of 10



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

300 Totals

7 21 Train Ave SW 7 P ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Eldredge to: Corrin

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

200 Totals

Page 5 of 10



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

7 23 Whitesell Court NW 7 P 0.3 ALL 1/1/2016   No

from: Eldredge to: Dead End

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

300 Totals

7 24 Belfair St. SW 7 P 0.03 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Skinner Way. to: Belfair Ct

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

800 Totals

7 25 River Ave NE 7 P 0.13 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Calistoga to: Dead End

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

100 Totals

7 26 Leber ST NW 7 P 0.04 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Van Scoyoc to: Corrin

Chip/Seal

Block Number:

100 Totals

7 27 Corrin Ave SW. 7 P 0.1 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Train to: Bridge

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

200 Totals

Page 6 of 10



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

7 28 Corrin Ave SW. 7 P 0.1 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Calistoga  to: Train

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

100 Totals

7 29 Bridge ST SE 7 P 0.18 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: River to: Mill

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

200, 300 Totals

7 30 River Ave SE 7 P 0.05 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Ammons to: Factory

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

300 Totals

7 31 River Ave SE 7 P 0.07 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Factory to: Train

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 100

Totals

Page 7 of 10



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

7 32 River Ave SE 7 P 0.07 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Train to: Calistoga

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

100 Totals

7 33 Calistoga Ct. SW 7 P 0.02 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Calistoga to: Dead End

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

700 Totals 1 1 1

7 34 Skinner Way SW 7 P 0.15 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Calistoga St W to: Belfair Ave

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

600 Totals

7 35 Skinner Way SW 7 P 0.13 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Belair Ave to: Grinnell Ave

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

500 Totals

7 36 Tacoma Ave SW 7 P 0.15 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Calistoga to: Dead End

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

100 Totals

Page 8 of 10



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

7 37 Tacoma Ave. NW 7 P 0.05 ALL 1/12016 No

from: Calistoga to:  NW End

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

100 Totals

7 38 Van Scoyoc Ave SW 7 P 0.1 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Calistoga to: Train

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

100 Totals

7 39 Van Scoyoc Ave SW 7 P 0.09 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Train to:  Bridge

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 

200 Totals

7 39 Varner Ave SE 7 P 0.09 ALL 1/1/2016 No

from: Bridge to: Hardefelt

Chip/Seal

Block Number: 300 Totals

7 40 Bridge Street SE Regrade 3 P 0.13 GOW ALL 1/1/2016 795 795 795 CE No

Bridge St. SE

from: Washington Ave. S. to: River Ave. SE Curve
Regrade, paving, parking, curb/gutter, sidewalks, 
replace water main.

Block Number 

100-300 Totals 795 795 795

9 41 River Avenue SE Regrade 3 P 0.16 GW ALL 1/1/2017                       981 981 981

River Avenue SE

from: Calistoga St. E. to: River Ave. SE Curve

Block Number: 

100-300

Totals 981 981 981
Regrade, paving, parking, sidewalks, replace water 
main, sewer, storm.

Page 9 of 10



Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Agency: Orting

Co. No.: 27 Co. Name: Hearing Date: Adoption Date

City No.: 940 MPO/RPTO: Amend Date: Resolution No.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PSRC

Pierce County 27-Apr-16

11-May-16

11-May-16

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Costs in Thousands of Dollars

Fund Source Information

Federal Funding

Federal 
Fund 
Code

Federal 
Cost by 
Phase

Phase Start 
(mm/dd/yyyy)

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

yp
e(

s)

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

Project Identification
A. PIN/Federal Aid No. 
B. Bridge No.
C. Project Title
D. Street/Road Name or Number
E. Beginning MP or Road – Ending MP or Road
F. Describe Work to be Done

R/W 
Required 

Date 
(mm/yy)

Federal Funded 
Project Only

St
at

us

To
ta

l L
en

gt
h

U
til

ity
 C

od
es

1st

State 
Fund 
Code

State 
Funds

Local 
Funds

Total 
Funds

Expenditure Schedule 
(Local Agency)

2nd 3rd
4th Thru 

6th
Envir. 
Type

14 42 Orting Emergency Evacuation Bridge System 14 P 0.02 GOSW ALL 1/1/2017 STP(s) 742 PSMP 1,590 0 2,332 2,332
at Gratzer Avenue NW

Pedestrian Bridge over SR 162 Totals 742 1,590 0 2,332 2,332

6 43 Southwest Connector 1 P 0.21 WSOG ALL 1/1/2017 2,332 2,332 2,332 Yes
 Orting Ave.  NW to Groff Avenue NW

Whitehawk Boulevard

from: Orting Ave. NW to: Groff Avenue NW

Southwest Connector Totals 2,332 2,332 2,332

6 44 Whitehawk Extension – Groff to Calistoga 1 P 0.42 GOWS ALL 1/1/2017 3,710 3,710 3,710 Yes

Whitehawk Boulevard

from: Groff Ave. NW to: Calistoga Street

Totals 3,710 3,710 3,710

6 45 Whitehawk Extension – Calistoga St. Intersection 3 P N/A ALL 1/1/2017 1,166 1,166 1,166 Yes

Whitehawk Extension 12

from:      to: 

Totals 1,166 1,166 1,166

742 1,590 18,231 20,563 20,563

Construct 2/3 lane arterial from Groff Ave. to Calistoga 
St. at Skinner Way SW, water, sewer, storm, curb, 
sidewalk. (Cost is road only.)

Construct intersection improvements as part of 
Whitehawk Extension at Skinner Way SW/Calistoga 
Street West intersection.

GRAND TOTALS FOR ORTING:

Page 10 of 10



 

City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-36 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2016-983, Astound 
Broadband, LLC franchise agreement 

Agenda Item #: AB16-36  
For Agenda of: 4/27/16  
Department: Public Works  
Date Submitted: 4/8/16   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long X Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford X 
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Ordinance No. 2016-983 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
Astound Broadband, LLC, has made application to the City to construct, install, maintain, repair and  
operate an optic-based telecommunications system with the public rights-of-way of the City. 
 
The Franchisee represents that it has the legal, technical and financial qualifications to operate in the 
rights-of-way of the City as a wireline telephone business and a telecommunications company within 
the meaning of Title 80 RCW.  Based on representations and information provided by Franchisee, and in 
response to its request for the grant of a franchise, the City Council will determine that the grant of a 
nonexclusive franchise is consistent with the public interest. 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  No committee recommendation.  
Recommendation is from the Mayor and City Attorney. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-983, 
granting to Astound Broadband, LLC, a Limited Liability Company, a 
Non-exclusive Telecommunications Franchise to install, construct, 
maintain, repair, and operate a telecommunications system within 
the public rights of way. 

 



Page 1 of 51 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-983 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, GRANTING TO ASTOUND 
BROADBAND, LLC, A LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY, A NONEXCLUSIVE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FRANCHISE TO 
INSTALL, CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, REPAIR, AND 
OPERATE A TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM 
WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, Astound Broadband, LLC, a Washington limited liability company d/b/a 
Wave (hereinafter “Franchisee”) has made application to the City to construct, install, 
maintain, repair and operate a fiber optic-based telecommunications system with the public 
rights-of-way of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, Franchisee represents that it has the legal, technical and financial 
qualifications to operate in the rights-of-way of the City as a wireline telephone business 
and a telecommunications company within the meaning of Title 80 RCW; and  
 
 WHEREAS, based on representations and information provided by Franchisee, and 
in response to its request for the grant of a franchise, the City Council has determined that 
the grant of a nonexclusive franchise, on the terms and conditions herein and subject to 
applicable law, are consistent with the public interest; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized by applicable law to grant such a nonexclusive 
franchises within the boundaries of the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Table of Contents. 
 
ARTICLE 1.  DEFINITIONS 
 
ARTICLE 2.  FRANCHISE GRANT 
 

2.1 Public Right-of-Way Use Authorized 
2.2 Authorized Services 
2.3 No Rights Shall Pass to Franchisee by Implication 



Page 2 of 51 
 

2.4 Interest in the Public Right-of-Way; Release; Indemnity 
2.5 Rights Subordinate 
2.6 Condition of Franchise Area 
2.7 Franchise Nonexclusive 
2.8 Transfer 
2.9 Street Vacation 
2.10 Reservation of City Use of Public Right-of-Way 

 
ARTICLE 3.   COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS/ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 
 

3.1 Alteration of Material Terms and Conditions 
3.2 Compliance with Laws 
3.3 Reservation of Rights/Wavier 
3.4   Change in Form of Government 

 
ARTICLE 4.   ACCEPTANCE 
 

4.1 Acceptance 
4.2 Failure to Timely File Acceptance 
4.3 Effective Date; Term 
4.4 Effect of Acceptance 
4.5 Effect of Expiration/Termination 

 
ARTICLE 5. PROTECTION OF THE CITY AND PUBLIC 
 

5.1 Limitation of Liability 
5.2 Insurance Requirements – Attached Exhibit D 
5.3 Financial Security – Attached Exhibit E 
5.4 Contractors/Subcontractors  
5.5 Liens 
5.6 Financial Conditions 

 
ARTICLE  6. ENFORCEMENT AND REMEDIES  
 

6.1 Communication and Discussion 
6.2 Remedies 
6.3 Right to Cure Default 
6.4 Termination/Revocation 
6.5 Receivership 

 
ARTICLE 7.   GENERAL CONDITIONS UPON USE OF PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
 

7.1 Regulatory Permit 
7.2 Submission; Approval of Design Documents 
7.3 Compliance with Standards/Codes 
7.4 Conditions Precedent to Work 



Page 3 of 51 
 

7.5   Work in the Public Rights-of-Way 
7.6 Alterations 
7.7 General Conditions 
7.8 Facility Relocation at Request of the City 
7.9 Movement of Facilities for Others 
7.10 Movement of Facilities During Emergencies 
7.11 Record of Installations 
7.12 Restoration of Public Rights-of-Way, Public and Private Property 
7.13 Approvals 
7.14 Abandonment of Facilities 
7.15 Location of Facilities 

 
ARTICLE 8.  MISCELLANEOUS 
 

8.1 Headings 
8.2 Entire Agreement 
8.3 Incorporation of Exhibits 
8.4 Calculation of Time 
8.5 Time Limits Strictly Construed 
8.6 No Joint Venture 
8.7 Approval Authority 
8.8 Binding Effect upon Successors and Assigns 
8.9 Waiver 
8.10 Severability 
8.11 Signs 
8.12 Discriminatory Practices Prohibited 
8.13 Notice 
8.14 Survival of Terms 
8.15 Force Majeure 
8.16 Attorneys’ Fees 
8.17 Venue/Choice of Law 
8.18 Publication 
 

EXHIBITS: 
 

A.  Form of Acceptance of Franchise  
B.  Form of Transfer Agreement 
C.  Description of Franchise Area 
D.  Insurance Requirements 
E.  Financial Security 
F.  Contractor/Subcontractor Insurance Requirements 

  



Page 4 of 51 
 

 
 
ARTICLE 1.   DEFINITIONS.   

 
 For the purposes of this Franchise and the Exhibits attached hereto, the following 
terms, phrases, words and their derivations where capitalized shall have the meanings given 
herein.  Words not defined herein shall have the meaning given in the Orting Municipal Code.  
Words not defined herein or in the Orting Municipal Code, shall have the meaning given 
pursuant to such federal statutes, rules, or regulations that apply to and regulate the services 
provided by the Franchisee.  Words not otherwise defined, shall be given their common and 
ordinary meaning.  When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense 
include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in the singular include 
the plural.  The word “shall” is always mandatory and not merely directory.  References to 
governmental entities (whether persons or entities) refer to those entities or their successors 
in authority.  If specific provisions of law, regulation or rule referred to herein be 
renumbered, then the reference shall be read to refer to the renumbered provision.   

 
 “Affiliate” when used in connection with Franchisee means any Person who owns or 
controls, is owned or controlled by, or is under common ownership or control with Franchisee. 
 

“City” shall mean the City of Orting, a municipal corporation organized as a non-
charter code city, operating under the laws of the state of Washington. 

 
“Construct” shall mean to construct, reconstruct, install, reinstall, align, realign, 

locate, relocate, adjust, affix, attach, remove, or support. 
 
“Default” shall mean any failure of a Party to keep, observe, or perform any of its 

duties or obligations under this Franchise.   
 

“Design Document(s)” shall mean the plans and specifications for the Construction 
of the Facilities meeting the minimum applicable general plan submittal requirements for 
engineering services plan review as set forth in the City’s Design Standards manual, 
illustrating and describing the refinement of the design of the Telecommunications System 
Facilities to be Constructed, establishing the scope, relationship, forms, size and 
appearance of the Facilities by means of plans, sections and elevations, typical construction 
details, location, alignment, materials, and equipment layouts.  The Design Documents 
shall include specifications that identify utilities, major material and systems, Public Right-
of-Way improvements, restoration and repair, and establish in general their quality levels. 

   
“Direct Costs” shall mean and include all costs and expenses incurred by the City 

and directly related to a particular activity or activities, including by way of example:  

  i. All costs and expenses of materials, equipment, supplies, utilities, 
consumables, goods and other items used or incorporated in connection with and in 
furtherance of such activity or activities and any taxes, insurance, and interest expenses 
related thereto, including costs for crews and equipment; 



Page 5 of 51 
 

 ii. All costs and expenses of labor inclusive of payroll benefits, non-
productive time and overhead for each of the labor classifications of the employees 
performing work for the activity and determined in accordance with the City’s ordinary 
governmental accounting procedures; and, 

 iii.  All costs and expenses to the City for any work by consultants or 
contractors to the extent performing work for a particular activity or activities, including 
by way of example and not limitation, engineering and legal services. 
 

“Dispute” shall mean a question or controversy that arises between the Parties 
concerning the observance, performance, interpretation or implementation of any of the 
terms, provisions, or conditions contained in this Franchise or the rights or obligations of 
either Party under this Franchise. 

  
“Effective Date” shall mean and refer to that term as it is defined at Section 4.3 

herein. 
 

“Emergency” shall mean and refer to a sudden condition or set of circumstances 
that, (a) significantly disrupts or interrupts the operation of Facilities in the Public Rights-
of-Way and Franchisee’s ability to continue to provide services if immediate action is not 
taken, or (b) presents an imminent threat of harm to persons or property if immediate action 
is not taken.  
 

“Environmental Law(s)” means any federal, state or local statute, regulation, code, 
rule, ordinance, order, judgment, decree, injunction or common law pertaining in any way 
to the protection of human health or the environment, including without limitation, the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, and any similar or 
comparable state or local law.   

 
“Facility” or “Facilities” means any part or all of the facilities, equipment and 

appurtenances of Franchisee whether underground or overhead and located within the 
Public Rights-of-Way as part of the Franchisee’s Telecommunications System, including 
but not limited to, conduit, case, pipe, line, fiber, cabling, equipment, equipment cabinets 
and shelters, vaults, generators, conductors, poles, carriers, drains, vents, guy wires, 
encasements, sleeves, valves, wires, supports, foundations, anchors, transmitters, receivers, 
antennas, and signage.   
  

“Franchise” shall mean the grant, once accepted, giving general permission to the 
Franchisee to enter into and upon the Public Rights-of-Way to use and occupy the same 
for the purposes authorized herein, all pursuant and subject to the terms and conditions as 
set forth herein.   

“Franchisee” shall mean Astound Broadband, LLC d/b/a Wave and any of its 
Affiliates.   
 



Page 6 of 51 
 

“Franchise Area” shall mean collectively or individually the Public Rights-of-Way 
located within the area described in Exhibit “C”.     

“Franchise Ordinance” shall mean the Ordinance authorizing the Franchise.   

“Hazardous Substance” means those substances which have been recognized as 
dangerous or potentially dangerous to health, welfare, or to the environment by any federal, 
municipal, state, City, or other governmental or quasi-governmental authority, and/or any 
department or agency thereof; those substances which use, or have as its component thereof 
or therein, asbestos or lead-based paint; and petroleum oil and any of its fractions; and as 
such has been defined, listed or regulated under any Environmental Law. 
 
 “Law(s)” shall mean all present and future applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations, resolutions, environmental standards, orders, decrees and requirements of all 
federal, state, and local governments, the departments, bureaus or commissions thereof, or 
other governmental authorities, including the City acting in its governmental capacity.  
References to Laws shall be interpreted broadly to cover government actions, however 
nominated, and include laws, ordinances and regulations now in force or hereinafter 
enacted or amended.  
  

“Noticed Party” shall mean the Party in receipt of notice that it is in Default.  
 
“Person” means and includes any individual, corporation, partnership, association, 

joint-stock-company, limited liability company, political subdivision, public corporation, 
taxing districts, trust, or any other legal entity, but not the City or any Person under contract 
with the City to perform work in the Public Rights-of-Way. 

 
“Party(ies)” shall mean either the City or the Franchisee or both. 
 
“Private telecommunications system” means a telecommunications system 

controlled by a person or entity for the sole and exclusive use of such person, entity, or 
affiliate thereof, including the provision of private shared telecommunications services by 
such person or entity. “Private telecommunications system” does not include a system 
offered for hire, sale, or resale to the general public.  

 
“Public Rights-of-Way” means the surface of, and the space above and below, any 

public street, highway, freeway, bridge, land path, alley, court, boulevard, sidewalk, way, 
lane, public way, drive, circle or other public right-of-way, including, any easement now 
or hereafter held by the City within the corporate boundaries of the City as now or hereafter 
constituted for the purpose of public travel, and over which the City has authority to grant 
permits, licenses or franchises for use thereof, or has regulatory authority thereover, 
excluding railroad rights-of-way, airports, harbor areas, buildings, parks, poles, conduits, 
and excluding such similar facilities or property owned, maintained or leased by the City 
in its proprietary capacity or as an operator of a utility.   

 



Page 7 of 51 
 

“Public Works Director” means and refers to the Public Works Director for the City 
or his or her designee or such officer or person who has been assigned the duties of public 
works director or his or her designee.  
 

“Regulatory Permit” means a permit issued under the regulatory authority of the 
City that provides specific requirements and conditions for Work to Construct Facilities 
within the Public Rights-of-Way and includes by way of example and not limitation, a 
permit for installation of a new pole, construction permit, building permit, street excavation 
permit, barricade permit, and clearing and grading permit.   

 
“Remedy”, “Remediate” and “Remedial Action” shall have the same meaning as 

these are given under the Model Toxics Control Act (Chapter 70.105D RCW) and its 
implementing regulations at Chapter 173-340 WAC.    
 

“Service” shall mean the service or services authorized to be provided by the 
Franchisee under the terms and conditions of this Franchise. 

 
 
“Telecommunications Service” means the electronic transmission, conveyance, or 

routing of voice, data, audio, video, or any other information or signals to a point, or 
between or among points.  Telecommunications Service includes such transmission, 
conveyance, or routing in which computer processing applications are used to act on the 
form, code, or protocol of the content for purposes of transmission, conveyance, or routing 
without regard to whether such service is referred to as voice over internet protocol services 
or is classified by the federal communications commission as enhanced or value added.  
Telecommunications Service excludes, radio and television audio and video programming 
services, regardless of the medium, including the furnishing of transmission, conveyance, 
and routing of such services by the programming service provider.  Radio and television 
audio and video programming services include but are not limited to cable service as 
defined in 47 U.S.C. Sec. 522(6) and audio and video programming services delivered by 
commercial mobile radio service providers, as defined in section 20.3, Title 47 C.F.R. 

 
“Transfer” shall mean any transaction in which all or a portion of the 

Telecommunications System is sold, leased or assigned (except a sale or transfer that 
results in removal of a particular portion of the Telecommunications System from the 
Public Rights-of-Way); or the rights and/or obligations held by the Franchisee under the 
Franchise are transferred, sold, assigned, or leased, in whole or in part, directly or 
indirectly, to another Person.  A transfer of control of an operator shall not constitute a 
transfer as long as the same person continues to hold the Franchise both before and after 
the transfer of control.    

 
“Telecommunications System” shall mean collectively the Facilities that together 

with other facilities, appurtenances and equipment of Franchisee or other Persons are used 
to provide Telecommunications Services. 

 



Page 8 of 51 
 

“Work” shall mean any and all activities of the Franchisee, or its officers, directors, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, volunteers, invitees, or licensees, within 
the Public Rights-of-Way to Construct the Facilities. 

 
ARTICLE 2.  FRANCHISE GRANT. 

 
2.1 Public Right-of-Way Use Authorized.  Subject to the terms and conditions of 

this Franchise, the City hereby grants to Franchisee a nonexclusive Franchise authorizing the 
Franchisee to Construct, maintain, repair and operate Facilities in, along, among, upon, across, 
above, over, and under the Public Rights-of-Ways located within the Franchise Area.  

 
2.2 Authorized Services.  The grant given herein expressly authorizes Franchisee 

to use the Public Rights-of-Way to Construct, maintain, repair and operate its Facilities as 
part of its Telecommunications System to provide Telecommunications Services.  This 
authorization is limited and is not intended nor shall it be construed as granting Franchisee or 
any other Person the right, duty or privilege to use its Facilities or the Public Rights-of-Way 
to provide Services not specifically authorized herein.  This Franchise shall not be interpreted 
to prevent the City from lawfully imposing additional conditions, including additional 
compensation conditions, if authorized by applicable law for use of the Public Rights-of-Way, 
should Franchisee provide Service other than Service specifically authorized herein.    
However, this Franchise shall not be read as a concession by the Franchisee that it needs 
authorization to provide any services not otherwise authorized herein. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, this Franchise does not authorize Franchisee to provide cable service as defined 
in 47 U.S.C. Sec. 522(6). Franchisee understands and acknowledges that a separate 
franchise, or amendment to this Franchise, is required for the provision of cable service. 

  
 2.3 No Rights Shall Pass to Franchisee by Implication.  No rights shall pass to 
the Franchisee by implication.  Without limiting the foregoing and by way of example, this 
Franchise shall not include or be a substitute for: 

 
 2.3.1 Any other authorization required for the privilege of transacting and 

carrying on a business within the City that may be lawfully required by the Laws of the City; 
 
 2.3.2 Any Regulatory Permit required by the City for Public Rights-of-Way 

users in connection with operations on or in Public Rights-of-Way or public property, 
including Regulatory Permits for installation of new poles; or 

 
 2.3.3 Any licenses, leases, easements or other agreements for occupying any 

other property or infrastructure of the City or other Persons to which access is not specifically 
granted by this Franchise including, without limitation, agreements for placing devices on 
poles, light standards, in conduits, in vaults, in or on pipelines, or in or on other structures or 
public buildings. 

 
 2.3.4 Any permits or other authorizations that may be required under the 

land use code and development regulations of the City for the construction of Facilities within 



Page 9 of 51 
 

a particular zoning district in the City, including by way of example and not limitation, a 
conditional use permit or a variance.  

 
2.4  Interest in the Public Right-of-Way/Release/Indemnity.  This Franchise shall 

not operate or be construed to convey title, equitable or legal, in the Public Rights-of-Way.  
This Franchise shall be deemed to grant no more than those rights which the City may have 
the undisputed right and power to give.  The grant given herein does not confer rights other 
than as expressly provided in the grant hereof and is subject to the limitations in applicable 
Law.  Such right may not be subdivided or subleased to a person other than the Franchisee 
except as set forth in Section 2.8 below.   

 
CITY DOES NOT WARRANT ITS TITLE OR PROPERTY INTEREST IN OR 

TO ANY FRANCHISE AREA NOR UNDERTAKE TO DEFEND FRANCHISEE IN 
THE PEACEABLE POSSESSION OR USE THEREOF.  NO COVENANT OF QUIET 
ENJOYMENT IS MADE.   

 
Franchisee hereby releases City from any and all liability, cost, loss, damage or 

expense in connection with any claims that City lacked sufficient legal title or other 
authority to convey the rights described herein.  In case of eviction of Franchisee or 
Franchisee’s contractors by anyone owning or claiming title to, or any interest in the 
Franchise Area, City shall not be liable to Franchisee or Franchisee’s contractors for any 
costs, losses or damages of any Party.  

 
2.5  Rights Subordinate.  Franchisee further acknowledges that Franchisee’s 

rights under this Franchise to Construct Facilities in the Franchise Area, are subject and 
subordinate to all outstanding rights and encumbrances on the City’s Public Rights-of-
Way.   

 
2.6 Condition of Franchise Area.  Franchisee has inspected or will inspect the 

Franchise Area described on the attached Exhibit C, and enters upon each such Franchise 
Area with knowledge of its physical condition and the danger inherent in operations 
conducted in, on or near any Franchise Area.  Franchisee acknowledges that Hazardous 
Substances or other adverse matters may affect the Franchise Area that were not revealed 
by Franchisee’s inspection. 
 

CITY HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, 
WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE DESIGN OR CONDITION OF THE 
FRANCHISE AREA, INCLUDING THE ENVRONMENTAL CONDITION OF THE 
FRANCHISE AREA, ITS MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, THE QUALITY OF THE MATERIAL OR 
WORKMANSHIP OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, OR THE CONFORMITY OF 
ANY PART OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TO ITS INTENDED USES.  CITY 
SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE TO FRANCHISEE OR ANY OF FRANCHISEE’S 
CONTRACTORS FOR ANY DAMAGES RELATING TO THE DESIGN, CONDITION, 
QUALITY, SAFETY, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE OF ANY PART OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY PRESENT ON OR 



Page 10 of 51 
 

CONSTITUTING ANY FRANCHISE AREA, OR THE CONFORMITY OF ANY SUCH 
PROPERTY TO ITS INTENDED USES, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT ANY DAMAGES 
RELATING TO THE CONDITION, QUALITY, OR SAFETY OF ANY PART OF THE 
PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ARISE FROM THE CITY’S GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR 
WILLFUL MISCONDUCT.  

  
2.7 Franchise Nonexclusive.  This Franchise shall be nonexclusive.  Subject to the 

terms and conditions herein, the City may at any time grant authorization to others to use the 
Public Rights-of-Way for any lawful purpose on terms and conditions that are competitively 
neutral and nondiscriminatory among similarly situated franchisees; provided that, no other 
Person holding a valid franchise shall have superior rights to Franchisee to use and occupy 
the space within the Public Right-of-Way lawfully occupied by Franchisee Facilities, except 
as provided pursuant to Section 7.8 (Facility Relocation) hereof.  

2.8 Transfer. Franchisee may Transfer this Franchise after prior written notice 
to the City and Transferee’s written commitment, in substantially the form of the agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, delivered to the City, that transferee(s) shall thereafter be 
responsible for all obligations of Franchisee with respect to the Franchise and guaranteeing 
performance under the terms and conditions of the Franchise and that transferees will be 
bound by all the conditions of the Franchise and will assume all the obligations of its 
predecessor.  Such a Transfer shall relieve the Franchisee of any further obligations under 
the Franchise, including any obligations not fulfilled by Franchisee’s Transferee; provided 
that, the Transfer shall not in any respect relieve the Franchisee, or any of its successors in 
interest, of responsibility for acts or omissions, known or unknown, or the consequences 
thereof, which acts or omissions occur prior to the time of the Transfer.  This Franchise 
may not be transferred without filing or establishing with the City the insurance certificates, 
security fund and performance bond as required pursuant to this Franchise and paying all 
Direct Costs to the City related to the Transfer. 
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice to the City shall not be required for a mortgage, 
hypothecation or an assignment of Franchisee’s interest in the Franchise in order to secure 
indebtedness.  
 
 Franchisee may, without the prior written notice to or consent of the City: (i) lease 
the Telecommunications System, or any portion thereof, to another Person; (ii) grant an 
Indefeasible Right of User Interest in the Telecommunications System, or any portion 
thereof, to another Person; or (iii) offer or provide capacity or bandwidth in its 
Telecommunications System to another Person; provided that, Franchisee at all times 
retains exclusive control over its Telecommunications System and remains responsible for 
Constructing its Facilities pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Franchise, and 
provided further that, Franchisee may grant no rights to any such Person that are greater 
than any rights Franchisee has pursuant to this Franchise; such Persons shall not be 
construed to be a third-party beneficiary hereunder; and, no such Person may use the 
Telecommunications System for any purpose not authorized herein.   
  

2.9 Street Vacation.  If any Public Right-of-Way or portion thereof used by 
Franchisee is to be vacated during the term of this Franchise, unless as a condition of such 



Page 11 of 51 
 

vacation the Franchisee is granted the right to continue to occupy the vacated Public Right-
of-Way, Franchisee shall, without delay or expense to City, remove its Facilities from such 
Public Right-of-Way, and restore, repair or reconstruct the Public Right-of-Way where 
such removal has occurred, and place the Public Right-of-Way in such condition as may 
be required by the City.  Nothing herein is intended to operate as a waiver of Franchisee’s 
right or entitlement under state law or City ordinance to receive notice of or to object to 
vacation of the Public Right-of-Way occupied by Franchisee Facilities.   

2.10 Reservation of City Use of Public Right-of-Way.  Nothing in this Franchise 
shall prevent the City from constructing sanitary or storm sewers; grading, changing grade, 
paving, repairing, widening or otherwise altering any Public Right-of-Way; laying down, 
repairing or removing water mains; or installing conduit or fiber optic cable. 
 
ARTICLE 3.   COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS/ORDER OF PRECEDENCE. 
 

3.1 Alteration of Material Terms and Conditions.  Subject to federal and State 
preemption, the material rights, benefits, obligations or duties as specified in this Franchise 
may not be unilaterally altered or impaired by the City through subsequent amendments to, 
or enactment of, any ordinance, regulation, resolution or other enactment of the City.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City specifically reserves its right to make and enforce 
those laws that are within the lawful exercise of the City’s police power.   

 
3.2 Compliance with Laws.  Except as provided herein pursuant to Section 3.1, 

the Franchisee agrees to comply with all applicable Laws as now or hereafter in effect, and 
any lawful orders from regulatory agencies or courts with jurisdiction over Franchisee and its 
Facilities, or over the City and the Public Rights-of-Way.   

 
3.3   Reservation of Rights/Wavier.  The City expressly reserves all of its rights, 

authority and control arising from any relevant provisions of federal, State or local Laws 
granting the City rights, authority or control over the Public Rights-of-way or the activities of 
the Franchisee.   
 

3.4 Change in Form of Government.  Any change in the form of government of 
the City shall not affect the validity of this Franchise. Any governmental unit succeeding 
the City shall, without the consent of Franchisee, succeed to all of the rights and obligations 
of the City provided in this Franchise. 
  
ARTICLE 4.   ACCEPTANCE. 

 
 4.1 Acceptance.   Within thirty (30) days after the passage and approval of this 
Franchise by the City Council, this Franchise shall be accepted by Franchisee by filing with 
the City Clerk during regular business hours, or to the City Attorney, three originals of this 
Franchise with its original signed and notarized written acceptance of all of the terms, 
provisions and conditions of this Franchise in conformance with Exhibit “A”, together with 
the following, if required herein: 
 



Page 12 of 51 
 

  4.1.1 Payment in readily available funds of the administrative costs for 
issuance of the Franchise in conformance with the requirements of Section 5.6 herein. 
 
  4.1.2 Submission of proof of financial security in accordance with Section 
5.3 herein. 
 
  4.1.3 Submission of an insurance certificate in accordance with Section 
5.2 herein. 
 
  4.1.4 Payment of the costs of publication of this Franchise Ordinance in 
conformance with the requirements of Section 8.18 herein. 
 
  In the event that the thirtieth day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday 
during which the City is closed for business, the filing date shall fall on the last business day 
before such Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. 
 
 4.2 Failure to Timely File Acceptance.   The failure of Franchisee to timely file its 
written acceptance shall be deemed a rejection by Franchisee of this Franchise, and this 
Franchise shall then be void.      
 

4.3 Effective Date; Term.   
 
 4.3.1 Effective Date.  Except as provided pursuant to Section 4.2 of this 

Franchise, the Effective Date of this Ordinance and Franchise shall be 12:01 a.m. on the day 
following Franchisee’s acceptance under Section 4.1 and not later than the 31st day following 
passage and approval of this Franchise by the City Council.  This Franchise and the rights, 
privileges, and authority granted hereunder and the relationship established hereby shall take 
effect and be in force from and after the Effective Date of this Ordinance for the term hereof. 

 
 4.3.2 Term.  The term of this Franchise shall commence on the Effective 

Date and shall continue in full force and effect for a period of ten (10) years, unless sooner 
terminated, revoked or rendered void.  No more than one hundred eighty (180) days prior to 
expiration, the Parties may mutually agree in writing to extend the term of this Franchise for 
an additional five (5) year term upon the same terms and conditions as provided herein.  The 
City Administrator is authorized to execute such an extension on behalf of the City without 
further action or approval by the City Council.   

 
4.4 Effect of Acceptance.  By accepting the Franchise the Franchisee:  
 

4.4.1 Accepts and agrees to comply with and abide by all of the lawful 
terms and conditions of this Franchise; 

 
4.4.2 Acknowledges and agrees that it has carefully read the terms and 

conditions of this Franchise; it unconditionally accepts all of the terms and conditions of 
this Franchise; it unconditionally agrees to abide by the same; it has relied upon its own 
investigation of all relevant facts; it has had the assistance of counsel; it was not induced 



Page 13 of 51 
 

to accept a Franchise; and, that this Franchise represents the entire agreement between the 
Franchisee and the City;   

 
  4.4.3 Warrants that Franchisee has full right and authority to enter into and 

accept this Franchise in accordance with the terms hereof, and by entering into or 
performing this Franchise, Franchisee is not in violation of its charter or by-laws, or any 
law, regulation, or agreement by which it is bound or to which it is subject; and 

 
  4.4.4 Warrants that Franchisee has full right and authority to enter into 

and accept this Franchise in accordance with the terms hereof, that the signatories for 
Franchisee hereto are authorized to sign the Franchise acceptance, and that the joinder or 
consent of any other party, including a court, trustee, or referee, is not necessary to make 
valid and effective the execution, delivery, and performance of this Franchise.  
 
 4.5 Effect of Expiration/Termination. Upon expiration, revocation or 
termination of the Franchise without renewal or other authorization, Franchisee shall no 
longer be authorized to operate the Facilities within the Franchise Area and shall, to the 
extent it may lawfully do so, cease operation of the Facilities.  Forthwith thereafter, except 
as provided in this Section, or as otherwise provided by ordinance, Franchisee shall: (1) 
remove its Facilities from the Public Rights-of-Ways and restore the Public Right-of-Way 
in accordance with Section 7.12.1 (Restoration of Public Rights-of-Way) hereof; (2) sell 
its Facilities to another entity authorized to operate Facilities within the Franchise Area 
(which may include the City) in accordance with the transfer provisions under Section 2.8; 
or (3) abandon any Facilities in place in the Public Rights-of-Way in accordance with 
Section 7.14 (Abandonment of Facilities) hereof.   
 
ARTICLE 5. PROTECTION OF THE CITY AND PUBLIC. 
 
 5.1 Limitation of Liability. 
 
  5.1.1  INDEMNITY/RELEASE/DEFENSE.  TO THE FULLEST 
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, FRANCHISEE SHALL RELEASE, INDEMNIFY, 
DEFEND, AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY AND THE CITY’S SUCCESSORS, 
ASSIGNS, LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, OFFICERS (ELECTED OR APPOINTED), 
EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS (COLLECTIVELY, “INDEMNITEES”) FOR, FROM, 
AND AGAINST CLAIMS, LIABILITIES, FINES, PENALTIES, COSTS, DAMAGES, 
LOSSES, LIENS, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, DEMANDS, JUDGMENTS, AND 
EXPENSES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, COURT COSTS, 
REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, AND COSTS OF INVESTIGATION, 
REMOVAL AND REMEDIATION, AND GOVERNMENTAL OVERSIGHT COSTS), 
ENVIRONMENTAL OR OTHERWISE (COLLECTIVELY “LIABILITIES”) 
ARISING OUT OF, RESULTING FROM, OR RELATED TO (IN WHOLE OR IN 
PART): 
 

5.1.1.1 FRANCHISEE’S OCCUPATION AND USE OF THE 
PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY; 

 



Page 14 of 51 
 

5.1.1.2 FRANCHISEE’S OPERATION OF THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM; 

 
5.1.1.3 ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINATION OF THE 

PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY CAUSED BY, AGGRAVATED BY, OR CONTRIBUTED 
TO, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, BY FRANCHISEE OR ITS CONTRACTORS, 
SUBCONTRACTORS, OR AGENTS (BUT ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH 
AGGRAVATION OR CONTRIBUTION); OR  

 
5.1.1.4 ANY ACT OR OMISSION OF FRANCHISEE OR 

FRANCHISEE’S CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS AND 
SERVANTS, OFFICERS OR EMPLOYEES IN CONNECTION WITH WORK IN THE 
PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  

 
 THE ONLY LIABILITIES WITH RESPECT TO WHICH FRANCHISEE’S 
OBLIGATION TO RELEASE AND INDEMNIFY THE INDEMNITEES DOES NOT 
APPLY ARE LIABILITIES TO THE EXTENT PROXIMATELY CAUSED BY THE 
GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT OF AN INDEMNITEE 
OR FOR LIABILITIES THAT BY LAW THE INDEMNITEES CANNOT BE 
INDEMNIFIED FOR. 
 
This covenant of indemnification shall include, but not be limited by this reference, to 
Liabilities arising, (1) as a result of the negligent acts or omissions of Franchisee, its agents, 
servants, officers, or employees in barricading, instituting trench safety systems or 
providing other adequate warnings of any excavation, construction, or work in any public 
Rights-of-Way or other public place in performance of work or services Permitted under 
this Franchise; and (2) solely by virtue of the City’s ownership or control of the Public 
Rights-of-Way or other public properties occupied or used by Franchisee.  
 
The fact that Franchisee carries out any activities under this Franchise through independent 
contractors shall not constitute an avoidance of or defense to Franchisee’s duties of defense 
and indemnification under this Section 5.1. 
 
  5.1.2   Tender of Defense.  Upon written notice from the City, Franchisee 
agrees to assume the defense of any lawsuit, claim or other proceeding brought against any 
Indemnitee by any entity, relating to any matter covered by this Franchise for which 
Franchisee has an obligation to assume liability for and/or save and hold harmless any 
Indemnitee.  Franchisee shall pay all costs incident to such defense, including, but not 
limited to, attorneys’ fees, investigators’ fees, litigation and appeal expenses, settlement 
payments, and amounts paid in satisfaction of judgments.  Further, said indemnification 
obligations shall extend to claims that are not reduced to a suit and any claims which may 
be compromised prior to the culmination of any litigation or the institution of any litigation.  
The City has the right to defend and may participate in the defense of a claim and, in any 
event, Franchisee may not agree to any settlement of claims financially affecting the City 
without the City’s prior written approval which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If 
separate representation to fully protect the interests of both Parties is necessary, such as a 



Page 15 of 51 
 

conflict of interest between the City and the counsel selected by Franchisee to represent the 
City, Franchisee shall select additional counsel with no conflict with the City. Franchisee’s 
indemnification obligations do not apply to any lawsuit, claim, or proceeding, including any 
settlement or compromise of a claim that is not reduced to a suit, if the City fails to provide 
timely notice to Franchisee, or if City enters into a settlement or compromise, or consents to 
entry of judgment, without Franchisee’s prior written consent. 
 
  5.1.3 Refusal to Accept Tender.  In the event Franchisee refuses the tender 
of defense in any suit or any claim, said tender having been made pursuant to the 
indemnification clauses contained herein, and said refusal is subsequently determined by a 
court having jurisdiction (or such other tribunal that the Parties shall agree to decide the 
matter), to have been a wrongful refusal on the part of Franchisee, then Franchisee shall 
pay all of the City’s costs for defense of the action, including all reasonable expert witness 
fees and reasonable attorneys’ fees and the reasonable costs of the City, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees of recovering under this indemnification clause. 

 
  5.1.4  Title 51 Waiver.  THE FRANCHISEE WAIVES IMMUNITY 
UNDER RCW TITLE 51 AND AFFIRMS THAT THE CITY AND THE FRANCHISEE 
HAVE SPECIFICALLY NEGOTIATED THIS PROVISION, AS REQUIRED BY RCW 
4.24.115, TO THE EXTENT IT MAY APPLY.   
   
  5.1.5 Inspection.  Inspection or acceptance by the City of any Work 
performed by Franchisee at the time of completion of construction shall not be grounds for 
avoidance of any of these covenants of indemnification. 

  
 5.2 Insurance Requirements.  See Attached Exhibit “D”. 

 
5.3 Financial Security.  See Attached Exhibit “E”. 
 

 5.4 Contractors/Subcontractors.  Franchisee contractors and subcontractors 
performing Work in the Public Rights-of-Way shall comply with such bond, indemnity and 
insurance requirements as may be required by the City.  The Franchisee contractors and 
subcontractors shall comply with the requirements set forth in attached Exhibit “F”. 
 
 5.5  Liens.  In the event that any City property becomes subject to any claims 
for mechanics’, artisans’, or materialmen’s liens, or other encumbrances chargeable to or 
through Franchisee which Franchisee does not contest in good faith, Franchisee shall 
promptly, and in any event within 30 days from receipt of written notice of such lien, cause 
such lien claim or encumbrance to be discharged or released of record (by payment, posting 
of bond, court deposit, or other means), without cost to the City, and shall indemnify the 
City against all costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in discharging and 
releasing such claim of lien or encumbrance.  If any such claim or encumbrance is not so 
discharged and released, the City may pay or secure the release or discharge thereof at the 
expense of Franchisee after first giving Franchisee five business days’ advance notice of 
its intention to do so.  Nothing herein shall preclude Franchisee’s or the City’s contest of a 
claim for lien or other encumbrance chargeable to or through Franchisee or the City, or of 
a contract or action upon which the same arose. 



Page 16 of 51 
 

 
 5.6 Financial Conditions. 
 
  5.6.1 Franchise Fees.  During the term of this Franchise, should federal 
and/or state Law change or the statutory prohibition or limitation upon assessment of 
Franchise fees be invalidated, amended, or modified allowing revenues derived by 
Franchisee from any Services provided by Franchisee using the Franchise Area to be 
subject to a Franchise fee or other fee in lieu of a Franchise fee that was otherwise 
prohibited or limited on the Effective Date, the City and Franchisee shall in good faith 
endeavor to negotiate a reasonable Franchise fee or other fee or other consideration in lieu 
of a Franchise fee, consistent with federal and/or state Law.  The fee or other consideration 
shall be comparable to Franchise or similar fees received by the City, or other cities of 
comparable population or assessed property value, for other similar uses of the Public 
Rights-of-Way by similar users.  
 

5.6.2 Reimbursement of Direct Costs of Amendment, Administration, and 
Renewal.  Franchisee shall reimburse the City for the City’s Direct Costs relating to the 
amendment (if requested by or for the benefit of the Franchisee), administration of this 
Franchise; provided, however, such reimbursement shall not exceed $3,000 in any calendar 
year of the initial ten (10) year term of this Franchise.  In the event of renewal, the Parties 
shall renegotiate the annual reimbursement cap on the City’s Direct Costs.  
 
  5.6.3 Reimbursement of Direct Costs of Design Review and Inspection.  
City approvals and inspections, as provided for in this Franchise, are for the sole purpose 
of protecting the City’s rights as the owner or manager of the road Public Rights-of-Way 
and are separate and distinct from the approvals and inspections and fees that may be 
required pursuant to a Regulatory Permit.  Therefore, Franchisee shall reimburse to the 
City, its Direct Costs of approvals and inspections, to the extent that such Direct Costs are 
not included in the costs for issuance of and compliance with a Regulatory Permit.  
Approvals and inspection, by way of example and not limitation, include review of design 
documents and inspection for compliance with Standards and Design Document submittal.      
 

5.6.4 Franchisee Responsibility for Costs.  Except as expressly provided 
otherwise in this Franchise, any act that Franchisee, its contractors or subcontractors are 
required to perform under this Franchise shall be performed at their sole cost and expense.   
 
  5.6.5 Franchisee Work Performed by the City.  Any work performed by 
the City that Franchisee has failed to perform as required pursuant to this Franchise and 
which is performed by the City in accordance with the terms of this Franchise, shall be 
performed at the cost and expense of the Franchisee.   Franchisee shall be obligated to pay 
the Direct Costs to the City for performing such work. 
 

5.6.6 Costs to be Borne by Franchisee.  Franchisee shall reimburse the City 
for all costs of publication of this Franchise, and any notices prior to any public hearing 
regarding this Franchise, contemporaneous with its acceptance of this Franchise. 
 



Page 17 of 51 
 

  5.6.7 Taxes and Fees.  Nothing contained in this Franchise Agreement 
shall exempt Franchisee from Franchisee’s obligation to pay any utility tax, business tax, 
or ad valorem property tax, now or hereafter levied against real or personal property within 
the City, or against any local improvement assessment imposed on Franchisee.  Any fees, 
charges and/or fines provided for in the Orting Municipal Code or any other City ordinance, 
whether pecuniary or in-kind, are separate from, and additional to, any and all federal, state, 
local, and City taxes as may be levied, imposed or due from Franchisee. 

 
  5.6.8 Itemized Invoice.  Upon request and as a condition of payment by 
the Franchisee of Direct Costs payable by Franchisee under this Franchise, City shall 
submit an itemized billing so as to specifically identify the Direct Costs incurred by the 
City for each project for which the City claims reimbursement.   
 

5.6.9 Time for Payment.  All non-contested amounts owing shall be due 
and paid within sixty (60) days of receipt of invoice, or itemized invoice if requested; 
provided that, in the event that an itemized invoice is not provided at the time of receipt of 
invoice and the City receives a request from Franchisee for an itemized invoice within 30 
days of receipt of invoice, such amounts shall be due and paid within sixty (60) days of 
receipt of the itemized invoice.   
 

 5.6.10 Overdue Payments.  Any amounts payable under this Franchise by 
Franchisee which shall not be paid upon the due date thereof, shall bear interest at the lower 
of (x) the maximum interest rate allowed by law, and (y) a rate of twelve (12%) percent 
per annum.   

5.6.11 Contesting charges.  Franchisee may contest all or parts of amounts 
owed within sixty (60) days of receipt of any invoice.  The City will investigate 
Franchisee’s contest and will make appropriate adjustments to the invoice, if necessary, 
and resubmit the invoice to Franchisee.  Franchisee shall pay any amounts owing as 
itemized in the resubmitted invoice which amounts shall be due within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of the resubmitted invoice.  However, Franchisee does not waive its rights to further 
dispute resolution processes pursuant to Section 6.1 of this Franchise.  Submittal of a 
dispute over amounts owing pursuant to Section 6.1 does not relieve the Franchisee of its 
obligation to pay amounts due under the resubmitted invoice.  

 
 5.6.12 Receivables.  Either Party hereto may assign any monetary 

receivables due them under this Franchise upon notice to the other; provided, however, (i) 
such transfer shall not relieve the assignor of any of its rights or obligations under this 
Franchise, and (ii) Franchisee shall have no such notice obligation with respect to any 
receivables other than those owed by the City. 
 
  5.6.13 Administrative Cost of Drafting Franchise Ordinance. Franchisee  
shall pay for the City’s reasonable administrative costs in drafting and processing this 
Ordinance and all work related thereto, which payment shall not exceed $5,000.  Subject 
to RCW 35.21.860, Franchisee shall further be subject to all potential future fees and costs 
under Section 5.6 including but not limited to fees associated with activities and the 
provisions of any permit, approval, license, agreement or other document.   



Page 18 of 51 
 

 
ARTICLE  6. ENFORCEMENT AND REMEDIES.   
 

6.1 Communication and Discussion.  The Parties are fully committed to 
working with each other throughout the term of this Franchise and agree to communicate 
regularly with each other at all times so as to avoid or minimize Disputes.  The Parties 
agree to act in good faith to prevent and resolve potential sources of conflict before they 
escalate into a Dispute.  The Parties each commit to resolving a Dispute in an amicable, 
professional and expeditious manner.   
 

The Parties further agree that in the event a Dispute arises, they will attempt 
to resolve any such Disputes through discussions between representatives of each Party.  
Each Party will exchange relevant information that will assist the Parties in resolving the 
Dispute.      
 

6.2 Remedies.  The Parties have the right to seek any and all remedies, in equity, 
at law or in contract.  Remedies are cumulative; the exercise of one shall not foreclose the 
exercise of others.  No provision of this Franchise shall be deemed to bar either Party from 
seeking appropriate judicial relief.  

 
Neither the existence of other remedies identified in this Franchise nor the exercise 

thereof shall be deemed to bar or otherwise limit the right of either Party to recover monetary 
damages, as allowed under applicable Law, or to seek and obtain judicial enforcement by 
means of specific performance, injunctive relief or mandate, or to commence an action for 
equitable or other relief, and/or proceed against the other Party and any guarantor for all 
direct monetary damages, costs and expenses arising from the Default and to recover all 
such damages, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.   

 
The City specifically does not, by any provision of this Franchise, waive any right, 

immunity, limitation or protection otherwise available to the City, its officers, officials, City 
Council, Boards, commissions, agents, or employees under federal, State, or local law. 
 
 6.3 Right to Cure Default.   
 

6.3.1 Notice.  If a Party believes that the other Party is in default, such Party 
shall give written notice to the Noticed Party stating with reasonable specificity the nature of 
the alleged default.  The Noticed Party shall have thirty (30) days, or such greater time as 
specified in the notice or such lesser time as specified in the event that there is an imminent 
threat of harm to the public health, safety or welfare resulting from the default, from the receipt 
of such notice to: 
 

6.3.1.1 Respond to the other Party, contesting that Party’s assertion 
that a Default has occurred; or 

 
6.3.1.2 Cure the default; or  
 



Page 19 of 51 
 

6.3.1.3 Notify the other Party that the Noticed Party cannot cure the 
default within the time provided in the notice, because of the nature of the Default.  In the 
event the Default cannot be cured within the time provided in the notice, the Noticed Party 
shall promptly take all reasonable steps to begin to cure the Default and notify the other Party 
in writing and in detail as to the exact steps that will be taken and the projected completion 
date.  In such case, the other Party may set a meeting to determine whether additional time 
beyond the time provided in the notice is indeed needed, and whether the Noticed Party’s 
proposed completion schedule and steps are reasonable. 
 
  6.3.2 Time to Cure.  When specifying the time period for cure, the Party 
giving notice shall take into account, the nature and scope of the alleged Default, the nature 
and scope of the work required to cure the Default, whether the Default has created or will 
allow to continue an unsafe condition, the extent to which delay in implementing a cure 
will result in adverse financial consequences or other harm to the Party giving notice, and 
whether delay in implementing a cure will result in a violation of Law or Default of 
contract. 
 

6.3.3 Failure to Cure.   If the Noticed Party fails to promptly commence 
and diligently pursue cure of a Default to completion to the reasonable satisfaction of the 
Party giving notice and in accordance with the agreed upon time line or the time provided 
for in the Notice of Default, then the parties may pursue any remedies available to them. 
 

6.4 Termination/Revocation.  In addition to the remedies available to the City as 
provided at Law, in equity or in this Franchise, upon a Default without cure, the City may 
revoke this Franchise and rescind all rights and privileges associated with this Franchise in 
accordance with the following: 
 

 6.4.1 Notice.  Prior to termination of the Franchise, the City shall give 
written notice to the Franchisee of its intent to revoke the Franchise.  The notice shall set forth 
the exact nature of the Default.  If Franchisee objects to such termination, Franchisee shall 
object in writing and state its reasons for such objection and provide any explanation.   
 

6.4.2 Hearing.  The City may then seek a termination/revocation of the 
Franchise in accordance with this Subsection. 
 
   6.4.2.1 The City Council, or its designee, shall conduct a public 
hearing to determine if termination/revocation of the Franchise is warranted. 
 
   6.4.2.2 At least fourteen (14) days prior to the public hearing, the City 
shall issue a public hearing notice that shall establish the issue(s) to be addressed in the public 
hearing; provide the time, date and location of the hearing; provide that the Hearing 
Body/Officer shall hear any Persons interested therein; and provide that the Franchisee shall 
be afforded fair opportunity for full participation, including the right to introduce evidence, to 
require the production of evidence, to be represented by counsel and to question witnesses.  
The public hearing notice shall be provided to Franchisee in accordance with Section 8.13 



Page 20 of 51 
 

hereof and public notice of the hearing shall be provided in the same manner as notice is 
provided for regular meetings of the City Council.    
 
   6.4.2.3 Within sixty (60) days after the close of the hearing, the City 
Council shall issue a written decision regarding the termination/revocation of the Franchise.  
If the City Council has designated another hearing body/officer to conduct the public hearing, 
such hearing body/officer shall make a recommendation to the City Council within thirty (30) 
days following the close of the public hearing, and the City Council shall make a decision 
upon the recommendation of the Hearing Body/Officer after a closed record hearing and 
within sixty (60) days following receipt of the recommendation of the Hearing Body/Officer.  
The decision of the City Council shall be final.  The Parties recognize that a decision to 
terminate/revoke a Franchise is not a land use decision that is subject to appeal pursuant to 
the Land Use Petition Act (Chapter 36.70C RCW).  Failure to render a decision within the 
required time period shall not be a basis for invalidation of the decision that is made.  Any 
appeal to which the Franchisee may be entitled (e.g., constitutional or statutory writ of review) 
shall be filed within 30 calendar days of issuance of the final decision of the City Council. 
 
  6.4.3 Decision to Terminate.  The City Council may consider one or more 
of the following when determining whether or not to terminate/revoke the Franchise based 
upon the material Default: 
 
   6.4.3.1 The history of repeated non-compliance by Franchisee with 
material terms and conditions of this Franchise; 
 
   6.4.3.2 Whether other remedies will achieve compliance with this 
Franchise; 
 
   6.4.3.3 Whether the Franchisee has acted in good faith; 
 
   6.4.3.4 Whether the acts or omissions that gave rise to the Default 
were willful or indifferent to the requirements that gave rise to the Default; 
 
   6.4.3.5 Whether the type of services provided by the Franchisee will 
be available to the general public through other providers; 
 
   6.4.3.6 Whether services provided by the Franchisee are essential 
public services or regulated utilities; 
 
   6.4.3.7 The impact or potential impact of the Default upon the public 
health, safety and welfare; 
 
   6.4.3.8 The economic risk the City is exposed to as a result of the 
Default; 
 
   6.4.3.9 Whether consent, permission, adjudication, an order or other 
authorization of a governmental agency or body, is required as a condition precedent to the 



Page 21 of 51 
 

City ordering the Franchisee to abandon or remove Facilities from the Public Rights-of-
Way or to cease operations (temporarily or otherwise) of the Facilities. 
 
   6.4.3.10 Such other facts and circumstances that are relevant to the 
controversy that gave rise to the Default and/or to whether or not the continued presence 
and operation of the Franchisee Facilities with the Franchise Area will be harmful to the 
public health, safety or welfare.  

 
6.5 Receivership.  At the option of the City, subject to applicable law and lawful 

orders of courts of competent jurisdiction, this Franchise may be revoked after the 
appointment of a receiver or trustee to take over and conduct the business of Franchisee 
whether in a receivership, reorganization, bankruptcy or other action or proceeding, unless: 
 

 6.5.1 The receivership or trusteeship is timely vacated; or 
 
 6.5.2 The receiver or trustee has timely and fully complied with all the terms 

and provisions of this Franchise, and has remedied all defaults under the Franchise.  
Additionally, the receiver or trustee shall have executed an agreement duly approved by the 
court having jurisdiction, by which the receiver or trustee assumes and agrees to be bound by 
each and every term, provision and limitation of this Franchise. 

 
ARTICLE 7.   GENERAL CONDITIONS UPON USE OF PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY. 
 
 7.1 Regulatory Permit.  If Franchisee has submitted an application for a 
Regulatory Permit to perform work in the Public Rights-of-Way, the City shall, to the extent 
practicable, consider such application contemporaneously with the design review 
requirements hereunder. 
 
 7.2 Submission; Approval of Design Documents.   

 
7.2.1 Submission.  At the time of application for a Regulatory Permit, or 

in the event that Franchisee seeks to alter or change the location of Facilities in a Franchise 
Area, Franchisee shall submit its Design Documents to the City for review and approval in 
accordance with the City’s plan review process.   

 
7.2.2 Use of Public Rights-of-Way.  Within parameters reasonably related 

to the City’s role in protecting the public health, safety and welfare and except as may be 
otherwise preempted by Law, the City may require that Facilities be installed at a particular 
time, at a specific place or in a particular manner as a condition of access to the proposed 
Franchise Area and may deny access if Franchisee is not willing to comply with such 
requirements; and, may require removal of any Facility that is not installed in compliance 
with the Standards (defined in Section 7.3 below) or which is installed without prior City 
approval of the time, place, or manner of installation.  

 
7.2.3 Approval of Plans.  Work may not commence without prior 

approval by the City of the Design Documents submitted by the Franchisee, which 



Page 22 of 51 
 

approval will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.  The City may review 
and approve the Franchisee’s Design Documents with respect to: 

 
7.2.3.1 Location/Alignment/Depth; 
 
7.2.3.2 The manner in which the Facility is to be installed; 
 
7.2.3.3 Measures to be taken to preserve safe and free flow of 

traffic; 
 
7.2.3.4 Structural integrity, functionality, appearance, 

compatibility with and impact upon roadways, bridges, sidewalks, planting strips, signals, 
traffic control signs, intersections, or other facilities and structures in the Public Rights-of-
Way; 

  
7.2.3.5 Ease of future road maintenance, and appearance of the 

roadway;  
 
7.2.3.6 Compliance with applicable Standards (as defined below) 

and codes; and 
 
7.2.3.7 Compliance and compatibility with the City’s 

comprehensive plan, six-year transportation plan, capital improvements plan, and regional 
transportation improvement plans.  

 
7.3 Compliance with Standards/Codes.  Except as may be preempted by federal 

or state Laws, all Facilities shall conform to and all Work shall be performed in compliance 
with the following “Standards” as now or may be hereafter revised, updated, amended or 
re-adopted:  

 
7.3.1 Standards for Public Works Engineering and Construction.  The 

most current edition of the City Standards for Public Works Engineering and Construction 
as adopted from time to time by the City.  This document includes the City Design 
Standards Manual, Design Standards Detail, and appendixes, and the most recently City 
adopted edition of the Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal 
Construction as prepared by the Washington State Department of Transportation 
(“WSDOT”) and the Washington State Chapter of American Public Works Association 
(“APWA”); 

 
7.3.2 MUTCD.  The Washington State Department of Transportation 

Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (“MUTCD”); 
 
7.3.3 Special Conditions.  Requirements and standards set forth as 

additional conditions in a Regulatory Permit. 
 



Page 23 of 51 
 

7.3.4 City Regulations.  City ordinances, codes, and regulations 
establishing standards for placement of Facilities in Public Rights-of-Way, including by 
way of example and not limitation, the specific location of Facilities in the Public 
Rights-of-Way.   

 
7.3.5 Other Regulatory Requirements.  Applicable requirements of federal 

or state governmental authorities that have regulatory authority over the placement, 
construction, or design of Franchisee Facilities;  

 
7.3.6 Industry Standards.  All Facilities shall be durable and Constructed in 

accordance with good engineering practices and standards promulgated by the government 
and industry for placement, Construction, design, type of materials and operation of 
Franchisee Facilities;  

 
 7.3.7 Safety Codes and Regulations.  Franchisee Facilities and Work shall 

comply with all applicable federal, State and City safety requirements, rules, regulations, 
Laws and practices.  By way of illustration and not limitation, Franchisee shall comply with 
the National Electrical Safety Code and the Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(OSHA) Standards; and  

 
 7.3.8 Building Codes.  Franchisee Facilities and Work shall comply with 

all applicable City Building Codes. 
 
7.4 Conditions Precedent to Work.  Except as may be otherwise required by 

applicable City code, rule, regulation or Standard, Franchisee shall comply with the following 
as a condition precedent to Work: 

 
 7.4.1 Regulatory Permits Required.  Except in the event of an Emergency, 

prior to performing any Work in the Public Right-of-Way requiring a Regulatory Permit, 
Franchisee shall apply for, and obtain, in advance, such appropriate Regulatory Permits from 
the City as are required by ordinance or rule.  Franchisee shall pay all generally applicable 
and lawful fees for the requisite City Regulatory Permits.   

 
  7.4.2 Compliance with Franchise.  Franchisee shall be in material 
compliance with the Franchise.    
 

7.5 Work in the Public Rights-of-Way. 
 
 7.5.1 Least Interference.  Work in the Public Rights-of-Way shall be done 

in a manner that does not unnecessarily hinder or obstruct the free use of the Public Rights-
of-Way or other public property and which causes the least interference with the rights and 
reasonable convenience of property owners, businesses and residents along the Public Rights-
of-Way.  Franchisee Facilities shall be designed, located, aligned and Constructed so as not 
to disturb or impair the use or operation of any street improvements, utilities, and related 
facilities of City or City’s existing lessees, licensees, permitees, franchisees, easement 
beneficiaries or lien holders, without prior written consent of City or the Parties whose 



Page 24 of 51 
 

improvements are interfered with and whose consent is required pursuant to agreements 
with the City existing prior to the Effective Date.   

 
7.5.2 Work Subject to Inspection.  The City may observe or inspect the 

Construction Work, or any portion thereof, at any time to ensure compliance with 
applicable Regulatory Permits, this Franchise, applicable Law, the applicable approved 
Design Documents, the Standards, and to ensure the Work is not being performed in an 
unsafe or dangerous manner.   

 
7.5.4   Notice to the Public.  Except in the case of an Emergency, City 

retains the right to require the Franchisee to notify the public prior to commencing any 
significant planned Construction that Franchisee reasonably anticipates will materially 
disturb or disrupt public property or have the potential to present a danger or affect the 
safety of the public generally.   

 
7.5.5 Work of Contractors and Subcontractors.  Franchisee’s contractors 

and subcontractors performing Work in the Franchise Area shall be licensed and bonded 
in accordance with the City’s and State’s applicable regulations and requirements.  Any 
contractors or subcontractors performing Work within the Public Rights-of-Way on behalf 
of the Franchisee shall be deemed servants and agents of the Franchisee for the purposes 
of this Franchise and are subject to the same restrictions, limitations and conditions as if 
the Work were performed by Franchisee.  Franchisee shall be responsible for all Work 
performed by its contractors and subcontractors and others performing Work on its behalf 
as if the Work were performed by it, and shall ensure that all such Work is performed in 
compliance with this Franchise and other applicable laws, and shall be jointly and severally 
liable for all damages and correcting all damage caused by them.  It is Franchisee’s 
responsibility to ensure that contractors, subcontractors or other Persons performing Work 
on Franchisee’s behalf are familiar with the requirements of this Franchise and other 
applicable Laws governing the Work performed by them. 

 
  7.5.6 Emergency Permits.  In the event that Emergency repairs are 
necessary, Franchisee shall perform such Work, provide such notices, and obtain Regulatory 
Permits in conformance with applicable Standards. 
 
  7.5.7 Stop Work.  On notice from the City that any Work does not comply 
with the Franchise, the approved Design Documents for the Work, the Standards, or other 
applicable Law, or is being performed in an unsafe or dangerous manner as reasonably 
determined by the City, the non-compliant Work may immediately be stopped by the City.  
The stop work order shall be in writing, given to the Person doing the Work and be posted on 
the Work site, indicate the nature of the alleged violation or unsafe condition; and establish 
conditions under which Work may be resumed.  If so ordered, Franchisee shall cease and 
shall cause its contractors and subcontractors to cease such activity until the City is 
reasonably satisfied that Franchisee is in compliance.  If an unsafe condition is found to 
exist, the City, in addition to taking any other action permitted under applicable Law, may 
order Franchisee to make the necessary repairs and alterations specified therein forthwith to 
correct the unsafe condition by a time the City establishes in its reasonable discretion.  The 



Page 25 of 51 
 

City has the right to inspect, repair and correct the unsafe condition if Franchisee fails to do 
so, and to reasonably charge Franchisee for the costs incurred to perform such inspection, 
repair or correction.  Payment by Franchisee will be made in accordance with Section 5.6.9.  
The authority and remedy set forth herein in this section is in addition to, and not a substitute 
for, any authority the City may otherwise have to take enforcement action for violation of City 
Codes or Standards.  
 

7.5.8 Discovery of Hazardous Substances/Indemnity.  In the event that the 
Work of the Franchisee in, on, and upon the Franchise Area results in the discovery of the 
presence of Hazardous Substances (“Discovered Matters”) in, on or upon the areas 
excavated or otherwise opened or exposed by Franchisee within the Franchise Area (the 
“Excavated Areas”), the Franchisee shall immediately notify the City and, take whatever 
other reporting action is required by applicable Environmental Law as it relates to the 
Discovered Matters in the Excavated Areas. 

 
In the event the Franchisee’s Work, in, on or upon the Franchise Area within 

the Excavated Areas results in a release (as determined under applicable Environmental 
Laws) of Hazardous Substances which were, before such activities, confined to areas 
within the Excavated Areas, but which after such activities by Franchisee are released 
beyond the Excavated Areas, and if the release is caused in whole or in part by the 
Franchisee, then the Franchisee shall indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless from 
the costs of all necessary Remedial Actions which are required under the applicable 
Environmental Laws, to the extent of Franchisee’s share of the liability for the release.  
Franchisee’s liability for the release may, inter alia, be determined by a final non-
appealable decision by a court of competent jurisdiction, or as provided in a final non-
appealable administrative order issued by the Environmental Authority, or by a consent 
decree entered by Franchisee and the Environmental Authority.   

 
7.6  Alterations.  Except as may be shown in the Design Documents or 

Regulatory Permits approved by the City or the record drawings, or as may be necessary 
to respond to an Emergency, Franchisee, and Franchisee’s contractors and subcontractors, 
may not make any material alterations to the Franchise Area, or permanently affix anything 
to the Franchise Area, without the City’s prior written consent.  Material alteration shall 
include by way of example and not limitation, a change in the dimension or height of the 
above ground Facilities.  If Franchisee desires to change either the location of any Facilities 
or otherwise materially deviates from the approved design of any of the Facilities, 
Franchisee shall submit such change to the City in writing for its approval pursuant to 
Section 7.2 of this Franchise.  Franchisee shall have no right to commence any such 
alteration change until after Franchisee has received the City’s approval of such change in 
writing. 

 
7.7 General Conditions. 
 
 7.7.1 Right-of-Way Meetings.  Subject to receiving advance notice, 

Franchisee will make reasonable efforts to attend and participate in meetings of the City 
regarding Right-of-Way issues that may impact the Telecommunications System. 



Page 26 of 51 
 

 
  7.7.2 Compliance Inspection. Franchisee’s Facilities shall be subject to 
the City’s right of periodic inspection upon at least seventy-two (72) hours’ notice, or, in 
case of an emergency, upon demand without prior notice, to determine compliance with the 
provisions of this Franchise or other applicable Law over which the City has jurisdiction.  
Franchisee shall respond to reasonable requests for information regarding its 
Telecommunications System as the City may from time to time issue in writing to 
determine compliance with this Franchise, including requests for information regarding the 
Franchisee’s plans for Construction and the purposes for which the Facility is being 
Constructed.   
 
  7.7.3 One Call.  If Franchisee places Facilities underground, Franchisee 
shall, at its own expense, continuously be a member of the State of Washington one number 
locator service under Chapter 19.122 RCW, or an approved equivalent, and shall comply 
with all such applicable rules and regulations.  The Franchisee shall locate and field mark 
its Facilities for the City at no charge. 

 
7.7.4 Graffiti Removal.  Within 5 business days after notice from the City, 

Franchisee shall remove any graffiti on any part of its Telecommunications System, 
including, by way of example and not limitation, equipment cabinets.  If either the 
Franchisee fails to do so within 5 business days or in the City’s discretion and subject to 
advance communication with the Franchisee, the City may remove the graffiti and bill the 
Franchisee for the reasonable cost thereof. 
 
  7.7.5   Dangerous Conditions, Authority for City to Abate. Whenever 
Construction of Facilities has caused or contributed to a condition that in the reasonable 
opinion of the City Engineer and/or Public Works Director, substantially impairs the lateral 
support of the adjoining Public Right-of-Way, street, or public place, or endangers the 
public, any utilities, or City-owned property, the City may reasonably require the 
Franchisee to take action to protect the Public Right-of-Way, the public, adjacent public 
places, City-owned property, streets, and utilities. Such action may include compliance 
within a prescribed time.  In the event that the Franchisee fails or refuses to promptly take 
the actions directed by the City, or fails to fully comply with such directions, or if 
Emergency conditions exist which require immediate action, the City may, to the extent it 
may lawfully do so, take such actions as are necessary to protect the Public Right-of-Way, 
the public, adjacent public places, City-owned property, streets, and utilities, to maintain 
the lateral support thereof, or actions regarded as necessary safety precautions; and the 
Franchisee shall be liable to the City for the reasonable costs thereof to the extent 
Franchisee is determined to be the proximate cause of such condition.  
 
  7.7.6 No Duty.  Notwithstanding the right of the City to inspect the Work, 
issue a stop work order, and order or make repairs or alterations, the City has no duty or 
obligation to observe or inspect, or to halt Work on, the applicable Facilities, it being solely 
Franchisee’s responsibility to ensure that the Facilities are Constructed and operated in 
strict accordance with this Franchise, the approved Design Documents, the Standards, and 



Page 27 of 51 
 

applicable Law.  Neither the exercise nor the failure by the City to exercise any right set 
forth in this Article 7 shall alter the liability allocation set forth in this Franchise.   

 
 7.7.7 Roadside Hazard.  All of Franchisee’s Facilities shall be kept by 

Franchisee at all times in a safe and hazard-free condition.  Franchisee shall ensure that 
Facilities within the Public Rights-of-Way do not become or constitute an unacceptable 
roadside obstacle and do not interfere with or create a hazard to maintenance of and along 
the Public Rights-of-Way.  In such event, the Franchisee shall take corrective action.  In 
the event that the City determines that a Facility within the Public Rights-of-Way has 
become or constitutes an unacceptable roadside obstacle or may interfere with or create a 
hazard to maintenance of and along the Public Rights-of-Way, following written notice 
explaining with reasonable specificity the nature of any such matter and a reasonable 
opportunity to cure of not less than thirty (30) days, the Franchisee shall take corrective 
action; provided that, nothing herein shall relieve the Franchisee from keeping its Facilities 
at all times in safe and hazard-free condition.   

 
Franchisee, at all times, shall employ the standard of care attendant to the 

risks involved and shall install and maintain in use commonly accepted methods and 
devices for preventing failures and accidents which are likely to cause damage, injury, or 
nuisance to the public or to Franchisee’s agents or employees.  Franchisee, at its own 
expense, shall repair, renew, change, and improve its Facilities from time to time as may 
be necessary to accomplish this purpose.  Franchisee shall use suitable barricades, flags, 
flaggers, lights, flares and other measures as required for the safety of all members of the 
general public and to prevent injury or damage to any person, vehicle or property by reason 
of such Work in or affecting such Public Rights-of-Way or property.  All excavations made 
by Franchisee in the Public Rights-of-Way shall be properly safeguarded for the prevention 
of accidents.   

 
7.7.8 Verification of Alignment/Depth.  Upon the reasonable request and 

prior written notice, in non-Emergency situations at least thirty (30) days’ notice by the 
City and in order to facilitate the location, alignment and design of Public Improvements 
(defined below), the Franchisee agrees to locate, and if reasonably determined necessary 
by the City, to excavate and expose portions of its Facilities for inspection so that the 
location of same may be taken into account in the Public Improvement design; PROVIDED 
that, Franchisee shall not be required to excavate and expose its Facilities unless the 
Franchisee’s record drawings and maps of its Facilities submitted pursuant to Section 7.11 
of this Franchise are reasonably determined by the City to be inadequate for purposes of 
this paragraph. 

 
 7.8 Facility Relocation at Request of the City.   
 

7.8.1 Public Improvement.  The City may require Franchisee to alter, 
adjust, relocate, or protect in place its Facilities within the Public Rights-of-Way when 
reasonably necessary for construction, alteration, repair, or improvement of any portion of 
the Public Rights-of-Way for purposes of public welfare, health, or safety (“Public 
Improvements”).  Such Public Improvements include, by way of example but not 



Page 28 of 51 
 

limitation, Public Rights-of-Way construction; Public Rights-of-Way repair (including 
resurfacing or widening); change of Public Rights-of-Way grade; construction, installation 
or repair of sewers, drains, water pipes, power lines, signal lines, communication lines, or 
any other type of government-owned communications, utility or public transportation 
systems, public work, public facility, or improvement of any government-owned utility; 
Public Rights-of-Way vacation, and the Construction of any public improvement or 
structure by any governmental agency acting in a governmental capacity for the public 
benefit.   

 
7.8.2 Alternatives.  If the City requires Franchisee to relocate its Facilities, 

the City shall make a reasonable effort to provide Franchisee with an alternate location 
within the Public Right-of-Way.  The Franchisee may, after receipt of written notice 
requesting a relocation of its Facilities, propose design alternatives that would mitigate or 
lessen the impact upon Franchisee’s Facilities.  The City shall provide a full and fair 
evaluation of such proposed design alternatives that, in the reasonable judgment of the 
City, would not impair, interfere with, or materially alter the scope, purpose or functioning 
of the Public Improvement and would not increase the anticipated public costs of the Public 
Improvement.   If so requested by the City, Franchisee shall submit additional information 
to assist the City in making such evaluation.  In the event that the City reasonably 
determines that it does not have available resources within the existing Public Improvement 
budget to fully and fairly evaluate Franchisee’s proposal, the City shall not be obligated to 
further consider such proposal unless and until the Franchisee funds the additional costs to 
the City to complete its evaluation.    

 
7.8.3 Notice.  The City shall notify Franchisee in writing as soon as 

practicable of the need for relocation and shall specify the date by which relocation shall 
be completed.  Except in case of Emergency such notice shall be no less than one hundred 
and eighty (180) days.  In calculating the date that relocation must be completed, City shall 
consult with Franchisee and consider the extent of Facilities to be relocated, the service 
requirements, and the construction sequence for the relocation, within the overall project 
construction sequence and constraints, to safely complete the relocation. Franchisee shall 
complete the relocation by the date specified, unless the City, or a reviewing court, 
establishes a later date for completion, after a showing by the Franchisee that the relocation 
cannot be completed by the date specified using best efforts and meeting safety and service 
requirements. 

 
7.8.4 Coordination of Work.  Franchisee acknowledges and understands 

that any delay by Franchisee in performing the Work to alter, adjust, relocate, or protect in 
place its Facilities within the Public Rights-of-Way may delay, hinder, or interfere with the 
work performed by the City and its contractors and subcontractors in furtherance of 
construction, alteration, repair, or improvement of the Public Improvement, and result in 
damage to the City and/or its contractors, including but not limited to, delay and disruption 
claims.  Franchisee shall cooperate with the City and its contractors and subcontractors to 
coordinate such Franchisee Work to accommodate the Public Improvement project and 
project schedules to avoid delay, hindrance, or disruption of such project.    

 



Page 29 of 51 
 

7.8.5 Assignment of Rights.  In addition to any other rights of assignment 
the City may have, the City may from time to time assign or transfer to its contractors or 
subcontractors its rights under Section 7.10 of this Franchise.      

 
       7.8.6 Reimbursement for Costs.  Notwithstanding the cost allocation 
provisions set forth in this Franchise, Franchisee does not waive its right(s) to and shall be 
entitled to seek reimbursement of its relocation costs as may be otherwise specifically set 
forth and authorized by Law, including in statute. Further, if the City reimburses or pays 
the relocation costs of a similarly situated franchisee for a given Public Improvement 
project, the City shall reimburse or pay Franchisee’s relocation costs on the same basis. 

   
 7.9 Movement of Facilities for Others. 

 
7.9.1 Private Benefit.  If any alteration, adjustment, temporary relocation, 

or protection in place of the Telecommunications System is required solely to accommodate 
the Construction of facilities or equipment that are not part of a Public Improvement project, 
Franchisee shall, after at least one hundred eighty (180) days advance written notice, take 
action to effect the necessary changes requested by the responsible Person; provided that, (a) 
the Person requesting the same pays for the Franchisee’s time, design, engineering and 
material costs associated with the requested work; (b) the alteration, adjustment, relocation or 
protection in place is reasonably necessary to accommodate such work; (c) Franchisee’s 
services are not interrupted; and (d) such alteration, adjustment, or relocation is not requested 
for the purpose of obtaining a competitive advantage over the Franchisee.   

 
7.9.2 Temporary Changes for Other Franchisees.  At the request of any 

Person holding a valid permit and upon reasonable advance notice, Franchisee shall 
temporarily raise, lower or remove its wires as necessary to permit the moving of a building, 
vehicle, equipment or other item.  The expense of such temporary changes must be paid by 
the permit holder. Franchisee shall be given not less than thirty (30) days’ advance notice 
to arrange for such temporary wire changes. 

 
7.10 Movement of Facilities During Emergencies.   
 

7.10.1 Immediate Threat.  In the event of an unforeseen event, condition or 
circumstance that creates an immediate threat to the public safety, health, or welfare, the 
City shall have the right to require Franchisee to shut down, relocate, remove, replace, modify, 
or temporarily disconnect Franchisee’s Facilities located in the Public Rights-of-Way at the 
expense of the Franchisee without regard to the cause or causes of the immediate threat.   

 
  7.10.2 Emergency.  In the event of an Emergency, or where a Facility 
creates or is contributing to an imminent danger to health, safety, or property, the City 
retains the right and privilege to protect, support, temporarily disconnect, remove, or 
relocate any or all parts of the Telecommunications System located within the Public 
Rights-of-Way, as the City may determine to be reasonably necessary, appropriate or 
useful in response to any public health or safety Emergency and charge the Franchisee for 
costs incurred. 



Page 30 of 51 
 

 
 7.10.3 Notice.  During Emergencies the City shall endeavor to, as soon as 

practicable, provide notice to Franchisee of such Emergency at a designated Emergency 
response contact number, to allow Franchisee the opportunity to respond and rectify the 
problem without disrupting Telecommunications Service.  If after providing notice, there is 
no immediate response, the City may protect, support, temporarily disconnect, remove, or 
relocate any or all parts of the Telecommunications System located within the Public 
Rights-of-Way in accordance with this Section 7.10. 

 
  7.10.4 Limitation on Liability.  The City shall not be liable for any direct, 
indirect, or any other such damages suffered by any person or entity of any type as a direct 
or indirect result of the City’s actions under this Section. 

 
 7.11 Record of Installations. 
 

7.11.1 Map/Record Drawing of Telecommunications System.  Upon 
request by the City, Franchisee shall search for and provide the City with the most accurate 
and available maps and record drawings in a form and content reasonably prescribed by 
the City reflecting the horizontal and vertical location and configuration of its 
Telecommunications System within the Public Rights-of-Way and upon City property in a 
format reasonably acceptable to the City.  Franchisee shall provide the City with updated 
record drawings and maps within a reasonable period of time following receipt of written 
request.  As to any such record drawings and maps so provided, Franchisee does not 
warrant the accuracy thereof and to the extent the location of the Telecommunications 
System is shown, such Telecommunications System is shown in its approximate location.  
 
  7.11.2 Maps/Record Drawings of Improvements.  After Construction 
involving the locating or relocating of Facilities, the Franchisee shall provide the City with 
accurate copies of all record drawings and maps showing the horizontal and vertical 
location and configuration of all located or relocated Facilities within the Public Rights-of-
Way.  These record-drawings and maps shall be provided at no cost to the City, and shall 
include hard copies and digital copies in a format reasonably specified by the City.  As to 
any such record drawings and maps so provided, Franchisee does not warrant the accuracy 
thereof and to the extent the location of the Telecommunications System is shown, such 
Telecommunications System is shown in its approximate location.  
 

7.12 Restoration of Public Rights-of-Way, Public and Private Property. 
 
  7.12.1 Restoration after Construction.  Franchisee shall, after completion 
of Construction of any part of its Telecommunications System, leave the Public Rights-of-
Way and other property disturbed thereby, in as good or better condition in all respects as 
it was in before the commencement of such Construction.  Franchisee agrees to promptly 
complete restoration work to the reasonable satisfaction of the City and in conformance 
with City Standards, including by way of example and not limitation, backfilling and 
restoration requirements as set forth in City Standards.  
 



Page 31 of 51 
 

7.12.2 Notice.  If Franchisee’s Work causes unplanned, unapproved, or 
unanticipated disturbance of or alteration or damage to Public Rights-of-Way or other public 
or private property, the Franchisee shall promptly notify the property owner within twenty-
four (24) hours. 
 
  7.12.3 Duty to Restore.  If Franchisee’s Work causes unplanned, 
unapproved, or unanticipated disturbance of or alteration or damage to Public Rights-of-Way 
or other public property, it shall promptly remove any obstructions therefrom and restore 
such Public Rights-of-Way and public property to the reasonable satisfaction of the City 
and in accordance with City Standards.   
 

7.12.4 Temporary Restoration.  If weather or other conditions do not allow 
the complete restoration required by this Section, Franchisee shall temporarily restore the 
affected Public Right-of-Way or public property.  Franchisee shall promptly undertake and 
complete the required permanent restoration when the weather or other conditions no 
longer prevent such permanent restoration. 
 
  7.12.5 Survey Monuments.  All survey monuments which are disturbed or 
displaced by any Work shall be referenced and restored, as per WAC 332-120, as the same 
now exists or may hereafter be amended, and all pertinent federal, state and local standards 
and specifications. 
 
  7.12.6 Approval.  The City Engineer, or designee, shall be responsible for 
observation and final approval of the condition of the Public Rights-of-Way and City 
property following any restoration activities therein.  Franchisee is responsible for all 
testing and monitoring of restoration activities.   
 
  7.12.7 Warranty.  Franchisee shall warrant any restoration work performed 
by Franchisee in the Public Rights-of-Way or on other public property for two (2) years, 
unless a longer period is required by applicable City Standards.  If restoration is not 
satisfactorily and timely performed by the Franchisee, the City may, after prior notice to the 
Franchisee, or without notice where the disturbance or damage may create an imminent risk 
to public health or safety, cause the repairs to be made and recover the reasonable cost of those 
repairs from the Franchisee.  Franchisee shall pay the City for such costs in accordance with 
Section 5.6.9. 
 
  7.12.8 Restoration of Private Property.  When Franchisee does any Work 
in the Public Rights-of-Way that affects, disturbs, alters, or damages any adjacent private 
property, it shall, at its own expense, be responsible for restoring such private property to 
the reasonable satisfaction of the private property owner.  
 
  7.12.9 Failure to Restore per City Standards.  If Franchisee should fail to 
leave any portion of the excavation in a condition that meets the City’s Standards, the City 
may on five (5) days’ notice to Franchisee, which notice shall not be required in case of an 
Emergency, cause all work necessary to restore the excavation to a safe condition.  
Franchisee shall pay to the City the reasonable cost of such work; which shall include, 



Page 32 of 51 
 

among other things, the City’s overhead in obtaining completion of said work (provided 
that in no event shall such overhead exceed 5% of the total costs, fees and expenses of third 
parties).   
 
 7.13 Approvals.  Nothing in this Franchise shall be deemed to impose any duty 
or obligation upon the City to determine the adequacy or sufficiency of Franchisee’s 
Design Documents or to ascertain whether Franchisee’s proposed or actual Construction is 
adequate or sufficient or in conformance with the Design Documents reviewed and 
approved by the City.  No approval given, inspection made, review or supervision 
performed by the City pursuant to or under authority of this Franchise shall constitute or 
be construed as a representation or warranty express or implied by the City that such item 
reviewed, approved, inspected, or supervised, complies with applicable Laws or this 
Franchise or meets any particular Standard, code or requirement, or is in conformance with 
the approved Design Documents, and no liability shall attach with respect thereto. City 
approvals and inspections as provided herein, are for the sole purpose of protecting the 
City’s rights as the owner and/or manager of the Public Rights-of-Way and shall not 
constitute any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the adequacy of the 
design or Construction of the Facilities or Telecommunications System, suitability of the 
Franchise Area for Construction, or any obligation on the part of the City to insure that 
Work or materials are in compliance with any requirements imposed by a governmental 
entity.  The City is under no obligation or duty to supervise the design, Construction, or 
operation of the Telecommunications System.    
 

7.14 Abandonment of Facilities.  Except as may be otherwise provided by Law, 
Franchisee may not abandon in place any Facilities in the Public Rights-of-Way without 
written consent from the City.  Franchisee shall provide written notice of its intent to 
abandon and such notice shall include a description of the Facilities it intends to abandon, 
the specific location in the Public Rights-of-Way of such Facilities, and the condition of 
such Facilities.  If the City determines within 180 days of the receipt of notice of 
abandonment from the Franchisee, that it wants the Facilities to be removed, then the 
operator must remove its abandoned Facilities by a date specified by the City and restore 
the Public Rights-of-Way in accordance with City Standards.  Franchisee shall be and 
remain responsible in perpetuity for any Facilities abandoned in the Public Rights-of-Way.   

 
 7.15 Location of Facilities.  Grantee shall place any new Facilities underground 
where existing telecommunications and cable facilities are located underground; provided, 
however, that any new Facilities may be located above-ground where existing aerial routes 
are available from utility pole owners.  Any new Facilities to be located above-ground shall 
be placed on existing utility poles.  No new utility poles shall be installed in connection 
with placement of new above-ground Facilities. 

 
ARTICLE 8.  MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
 8.1 Headings.  Titles to articles and sections of this Franchise are not a part of 
this Franchise and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part 
hereof. 



Page 33 of 51 
 

 
 8.2. Entire Agreement.  This Franchise contains all covenants and agreements 
between the City and the Franchisee relating in any manner to the Franchise, use, and 
occupancy of the Public Rights-of-Way and other matters set forth in this Franchise.  No 
prior agreements or understanding pertaining to the same, written or oral, shall be valid or 
of any force or effect and the covenants and agreement of this Franchise shall not be altered, 
modified, or added to except in writing signed by the City and Franchisee and approved by 
the City in the same manner as the original Franchise was approved.   
 
 8.3 Incorporation of Exhibits.  All exhibits annexed hereto at the time of 
execution of this Franchise or in the future as contemplated herein, are hereby incorporated 
by reference as though fully set forth herein. 

 
8.4 Calculation of Time.  Except where a period of time refers to “business 

days,” all periods of time referred to herein shall include Saturdays, Sundays, and legal 
holidays in the State of Washington, except that if the last day of any period falls on any 
Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the State of Washington, the period shall be extended 
to include the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the State of 
Washington; provided that, the Effective Date shall be determined as provided at Section 
4.3 of this Franchise. 

 
8.5 Time Limits Strictly Construed.  Whenever this Franchise sets forth a time for 

any act to be performed by Franchisee, such time shall be deemed to be of the essence, and 
any failure of Franchisee to perform within the allotted time may be considered a Default of 
this Franchise. 

 
 8.6 No Joint Venture.  It is not intended by this Franchise to, and nothing 
contained in this Franchise shall, create any partnership, joint venture, or principal-agent 
relationship or other arrangement between Franchisee and the City.  Neither Party is 
authorized to, nor shall either Party act toward third Persons or the public in any manner which 
would indicate any such relationship with the other.  The Parties intend that the rights, 
obligations, and covenants in this Franchise and the collateral instruments shall be 
exclusively enforceable by the City and Franchisee, their successors, and assigns.  No term 
or provision of this Franchise is intended to be, or shall be, for the benefit of any Person 
not a Party hereto, and no such Person shall have any right or cause of action hereunder, 
except as may be otherwise provided herein.  Further, the Franchisee is not granted any 
express or implied right or authority to assume or create any obligation or responsibility on 
behalf of or in the name of the City.  Nothing in this Section 8.6 shall be construed to prevent 
an assignment as provided for at Sections 2.8 or 7.8.5 of this Franchise.   

 
 8.7 Approval Authority.  Except as may be otherwise provided by Law or 
herein, any approval or authorization required to be given by the City, shall be given by 
the Public Works Director (or its successor), or by the Public Works Director’s designee. 

 
8.8 Binding Effect upon Successors and Assigns.  All of the provisions, 

conditions, and requirements contained in this Franchise shall further be binding upon the 



Page 34 of 51 
 

heirs, successors, executors, administrators, receivers, trustees, legal representatives, 
transferees and assigns of the Franchisee; and all privileges, as well as all obligations and 
liabilities of the Franchisee shall inure to its heirs, successors, and assigns equally as if they 
were specifically mentioned wherever the Franchisee is named herein.  

 
8.9  Waiver.  No failure by either Party to insist upon the performance of any of 

the terms of this Franchise or to exercise any right or remedy consequent upon a Default 
thereof, shall constitute a waiver of any such Default or of any of the terms of this 
Franchise.  None of the terms of this Franchise to be kept, observed or performed by either 
Party, and no Default thereof, shall be waived, altered or modified except by a written 
instrument executed by the injured Party.  No waiver of any Default shall affect or alter 
this Franchise, but each of the terms of this Franchise shall continue in full force and effect 
with respect to any other then existing or subsequent Default thereof.  No waiver of any 
default of the defaulting Party hereunder shall be implied from any omission by the injured 
Party to take any action on account of such default if such default persists or is repeated, 
and no express waiver shall affect any default other than the default specified in the express 
waiver and then only for the time and to the extent therein stated.  One or more waivers by 
the injured Party shall not be construed as a waiver of a subsequent Default of the same 
covenant, term or conditions. 
 

8.10 Severability.  If any word, article, section, subsection, paragraph, provision, 
condition, clause, sentence set forth herein, or its application to any person or circumstance 
(collectively referred to as “Term”), shall be held to be illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional 
for any reason by any court or agency of competent jurisdiction, such Term declared illegal, 
invalid or unconstitutional shall be severable and the remaining Terms of the Franchise 
shall remain in full force and effect unless to do so would be inequitable or would result in 
a material change in the rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder.   
 
 8.11 Signs.  No signs or advertising shall be permitted in the Franchise Area except 
as may be required by Law or as may be required by the City for the protection of the public 
health, safety and welfare, to the extent it has authority to do so.   
 

8.12 Discriminatory Practices Prohibited.  Throughout the term of this Franchise, 
Franchisee shall fully comply with all equal employment and nondiscrimination provisions 
of applicable Law. 
  

8.13 Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in 
writing, unless otherwise expressly permitted or required, and shall be deemed effective 
either, (i) upon hand delivery to the person then holding the office shown on the attention 
line of the address below, or, if such office is vacant or no longer exists, to a person holding 
a comparable office, or (ii) or when delivered by a nationally recognized overnight mail 
delivery service, to the Party and at the address specified below, or (ii) on the third business 
day following its deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class and certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, properly sealed and addressed as 
follows:  
 



Page 35 of 51 
 

Franchisee’s address:   Astound Broadband, LLC 
  401 Kirkland Parkplace 
  Suite 500 
  Kirkland, WA 98033 
  Attention: Steve Weed, CEO, and Byron Springer,  
  EVP 
 
 
The City’s Address:     City Administrator 
  City of Orting 
  110 Train Street SE - PO Box 489 
  Orting, WA 98360 
  Attention:  Mark Bethune 
 
 

The City and Franchisee may designate such other address from time to time by giving 
written notice to the other, but notice cannot be required to more than two addresses, except 
by mutual agreement.  
 
 8.14 Survival of Terms.  Upon the expiration, termination, revocation or 
forfeiture of the Franchise, the Franchisee shall no longer have the right to occupy the 
Franchise Area for the purpose of providing services authorized herein.  However, the 
Franchisee’s obligations under this Franchise to the City shall survive the expiration, 
termination, revocation or forfeiture of these rights according to its terms for so long as the 
Franchisee’s Telecommunications System or any part thereof shall remain in whole or in 
part in the Public Rights-of-Way, or until such time as the Franchisee transfers ownership 
of all Facilities in the Franchise Area to the City or a third-Party, or until such time as the 
Franchisee abandons said Facilities in place, all as provided herein.  Said obligations 
include, by way of illustration and not limitation, Franchisee’s obligations to indemnify, 
defend, and protect the City, to provide insurance, to relocate its Facilities, and to reimburse 
the City for its costs to perform Franchisee’s Work.  
   

8.15 Force Majeure.  In the event Franchisee is prevented or delayed in the 
performance of any of its obligations herein due to circumstances beyond its control or by 
reason of a force majeure occurrence, such as, but not limited to, acts of God, acts of 
terrorism, war, riots, civil disturbances, natural disasters, floods, tornadoes, earthquakes, 
severe weather conditions, employee strikes and unforeseen labor conditions not 
attributable to Franchisee’s employees, Franchisee shall not be deemed in Default of 
provisions of this Franchise.  

  
If Franchisee believes that circumstances beyond its control or by reason of a force 

majeure occurrence have prevented or delayed its compliance with the provisions of this 
Franchise, Franchisee shall provide documentation as reasonably required by the City to 
substantiate the Franchisee’s claim.  Franchisee shall have a reasonable time, under the 
circumstances, to perform the affected obligation under this Franchise or to procure a 
substitute for such obligation which is reasonably satisfactory to the City; provided that, the 



Page 36 of 51 
 

Franchisee shall perform to the maximum extent it is able to perform and shall take 
reasonable steps within its power to correct such cause(s) in as expeditious a manner as 
possible, provided that the Franchisee takes prompt and diligent steps to bring itself back 
into compliance and to comply as soon as possible under the circumstances with the 
Franchise without unduly endangering the health, safety, and integrity of the Franchisee’s 
employees or property, or the health, safety, and integrity of the public, Public Rights-of-
Way, public property, or private property.  

 
8.16 Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of a suit, action, arbitration, or other 

proceeding of any nature whatsoever, whether in contract or in tort or both, is instituted to 
enforce any word, article, section, subsection, paragraph, provision, condition, clause or 
sentence of this Franchise or its application to any person or circumstance, the prevailing 
Party shall be entitled to recover from the losing Party its reasonable attorneys, paralegals, 
accountants, and other experts fees and all other fees, costs, and expenses actually incurred 
and reasonably necessary in connection therewith, as allowed by Washington law and as 
determined by the judge or arbitrator at trial or arbitration, as the case may be, or on any 
appeal or review, in addition to all other amounts provided by Law.  This provision shall 
cover costs and attorneys’ fees related to or with respect to proceedings in Federal 
Bankruptcy Courts, including those related to issues unique to bankruptcy law.  This 
provision shall not apply to the extent that the suit, action, arbitration or other proceeding is 
brought to interpret any term, condition, provision, section, article or clause of this Franchise.  
 

8.17 Venue/Choice of Law.  This Franchise shall be governed by, and construed 
in accordance with, the laws of the State of Washington.  Any action brought relative to 
enforcement of this Franchise, or seeking a declaration of rights, duties or obligations 
herein, shall be initiated in the Superior Court of the County in which the City is located, 
and shall not be removed to a federal court, except as to claims over which such Superior 
Court has no jurisdiction.  Removal to federal court shall be to the Federal Court of the 
Western District of Washington.   
 

8.18 Publication.  This ordinance, or a summary thereof, shall be published in the 
official newspaper of the City, the expense of which shall be borne by Franchisee, and shall 
take effect and be in full force in accordance with Section 4.3 herein. 
 
 ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING 
THEREOF ON THE 27TH DAY OF APRIL, 2016, AND SIGNED IN 
AUTHENTICATION OF ITS PASSAGE THIS 27TH  DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 
 
       CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Joachim Pestinger, Mayor 
 
 
 



Page 37 of 51 
 

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
John P. Long, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 4/27/16 
Passed by the City Council: 4/27/16 
Ordinance No. 2016-983 
Date of Publication: 04/29/16 
 
 



Page 38 of 51 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

(Acceptance of Franchise) 
 
Franchise issued pursuant to Ordinance No. ______. 

 I, _______________________, am the _________________________________, 
and am the authorized representative to accept the above-referenced Franchise on behalf 
of _______________________________.  In my capacity as 
____________________________, and not individually, I certify that this Franchise and 
all terms and conditions thereof are accepted by _______________________, without 
qualification or reservation and that __________________________ unconditionally 
guarantee(s) performance of all such terms and conditions.  
 
 DATED this _____ day of ________________, 20___.    
  
 
         
 By       
 Its        
 

Tax Payer ID#    
 
STATE OF ____________ 
 
CITY OF ____________ 

 
ss. 
 

 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that 
_________________________ is the person who appeared before me, and said person 
acknowledged that said person signed this instrument, on oath stated that said person was 
authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it (as the 
_________________________ of _____________________, a _____________ 
corporation,) to be the free and voluntary act of such corporation/individual for the uses 
and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 Dated this _____day of _________________________, _____. 
 
 

(Signature of Notary) 
       
Print Name 
Notary public in and for the state of 
______________, residing at ____________ 
My appointment expires  _______________ 
  
 



Page 39 of 51 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

(Form of Transfer Agreement) 
 
 

 THIS TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this ___ day of 
_____________, 20___, by and between: 
 
1. PARTIES. 
 
 1.1 City of Orting, a legal subdivision of the state of Washington (“City”). 
 
 1.2 _______________________ (“Franchisee”). 
  
 1.3 _______________________ (“Transferee”). 
  

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS the City has issued a single Franchise (the “Franchise”) to Franchisee, 
which was authorized on the ____ day of _______________, 20_____, pursuant to 
Ordinance No. _______, and 
  
 WHEREAS Franchisee has reached an agreement with Transferee on a (describe 
transaction, example: conveyance of benefited property) 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________ with 
Transferee, to (example:  acquire from Franchisee its facilities and equipment located in the Public 
Rights-of-Way) _____________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________, and 
  
 WHEREAS Franchisee and Transferee have requested that the City approve a 
transfer of the Franchise from Franchisee to Transferee, and 
  
 WHEREAS, as a result of the transfer of the Franchise, Transferee will assume all 
rights, duties, and obligations that Franchisee has under the Franchise, will be responsible 
for full compliance with the Franchise, and will meet or exceed all applicable and lawful 
federal, state, and local requirements, and  
  
 WHEREAS, relying on the representations made by the Transferee and Franchisee, 
the City, on the ___ day of ___________, 20___, has, pursuant to Resolution 
No. __________ and the Franchise, approved the transfer upon the terms and conditions 
as stated herein;  
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the City’s approval of the transfer, 
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, THE PARTIES DO HEREBY 
AGREE as follows: 



Page 40 of 51 
 

 
2. TRANSFER.  Transfer of the Franchise shall be effective upon the following 
conditions precedent: 
 

2.1 Receipt by the City of the fully executed acceptance of Franchise attached 
hereto as Exhibit B-1 together with all required certificates of insurance, security fund and 
performance bond; 

 
2.2 Payment to the City of the Transfer fees; and 
 
2.3 The date of closing of the sale/conveyance of the property benefited by this 

Franchise and/or the Facilities located in the Franchise Area or upon a date as mutually 
agreed to by the City, Franchisee and Transferee as follows:________ 
__________________________.  
 
3. ACCEPTANCE OF FRANCHISE OBLIGATIONS. 
 
 3.1 The Franchisee and Transferee hereby accept, acknowledge, and agree that 
neither the proposed transaction between Franchisee and Transferee nor the City’s approval 
of this Agreement shall diminish or affect the existing and continuing commitments, duties, 
or obligations, present, continuing, and future, of the Franchisee and Transferee embodied 
in the Franchise.   
 
 3.2 Transferee and Franchisee agree that neither the transfer nor the City’s 
approval of this Agreement and the resulting transfer shall in any respect relieve 
Franchisee, or any of its successors in interest, of any obligation or liability arising from 
acts or omissions occurring prior to the transfer of the Franchise, whether known or 
unknown, or the consequences thereof.   
 

3.3 The transfer is not intended and shall not be construed to authorize the 
Franchisee to take any position or exercise any right that could not have been exercised 
prior to the Transfer. 

 
3.4 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Transferee shall not be 

responsible for any of Franchisee’s financial liabilities and obligations under the Franchise 
or pursuant to the City code, rules, and regulations that accrued before the Transfer of the 
Franchise, and Franchisee shall not be responsible for any financial liabilities and 
obligations under the Franchise or pursuant to the City code, rules, and regulations that 
accrue on or after the Transfer of the Franchise.  
 

3.5 The City waives none of its rights with respect to the Franchisee’s or 
Transferee’s compliance with the terms, conditions, requirements, and obligations set forth 
in the Franchise.  The City’s approval of this Agreement shall in no way be deemed a 
representation by the City that Franchisee is in compliance with all of Franchisee’s 
obligations under the Franchise.  
 



Page 41 of 51 
 

3.6 Franchisee and Transferee acknowledge and agree that the City’s approval 
and acceptance of this Agreement and the resulting transfer is made in reliance upon the 
representations, documents, and information provided by the Franchisee and Transferee in 
connection with the request for Transfer. 

 
4. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 

4.1 Conditions Precedent.  The Agreement shall be effective and binding upon 
the signatories once it has been signed by all signatories; provided that, within 30 days of 
execution of the Agreement by all of the signatories, Transferee has provided to the City 
the following:  (1) all fees required for this Transfer, (2) its acceptance of the Franchise in 
substantially the form of the document attached hereto as Exhibit B-1; (3) its insurance 
certificate in conformance with the requirements of the Franchise; (4) a performance bond 
or cash deposit in conformance with the requirements of the Franchise. 

 
 4.2 Entire Agreement.  The Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the 
Parties with respect to the matters addressed herein.  No statements, promises, or 
inducements inconsistent with the Agreement made by any Party shall be valid or binding, 
unless in writing and executed by all Parties.   
 
 4.3 Binding Acceptance.  The Agreement shall bind and benefit the Parties 
hereto and their respective heirs, beneficiaries, administrators, executors, receivers, 
trustees, successors, and assigns, and the promises and obligations herein shall survive the 
expiration date hereof.  Any purported transfer of the Agreement is void without the 
express written consent of the signatories. 
 
 4.4 Severability.  In the event that any provision of the Agreement shall, to any 
extent, be held to be invalid, preempted, or unenforceable, the remainder hereof shall be 
valid in all other respects and continue to be effective. 
 
 4.5 Defined Terms.  Terms not defined in this Agreement shall have the same 
meaning as given in the Franchise. 
 

4.6 Governing Law.  The Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the 
laws of the state of Washington. 

 
4.7 Notice.  Pursuant to Section 8.13 of the Franchise, Notices to Transferee 

shall be delivered to: 
 
Transferee’s address:   ** 
  ** 
  **   
  ** 
 
And to:  ** 
  ** 



Page 42 of 51 
 

  ** 
  ** 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
day and year first written above. 
 
CITY:      FRANCHISEE: 
       
 
             
By:  City Administrator   By:         
      Title:         
 
      TRANSFEREE:    
   
 
             
      By:         
      Title:         
 

Tax Id. No. ________________ 
 
 



Page 43 of 51 
 

TRANSFER EXHIBIT B-1 
 

Acceptance of Franchise   
 
 Franchise issued pursuant to Ordinance No. ______ and accepted ___________, 
20____; Transfer authorized pursuant to Resolution No. _____, effective ____________, 
20___. 
 
 I, _______________________, am the _________________________________, 
and am the authorized representative to accept the above-referenced Franchise on behalf 
of _______________________________.  In my capacity as _____________________, 
and not individually, I certify that this Franchise and all terms and conditions thereof are 
accepted by _______________________, without qualification or reservation and that 
___________ unconditionally guarantee(s) performance of all such terms and conditions.  
 
 DATED this _____ day of ________________, 20___.    
  
 By       
 Its        
  
 Tax Payer ID# _______________________ 
     
STATE OF ______________ 
 
CITY OF ________________ 

 
ss. 
 

 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that 
_________________________ is the person who appeared before me, and said person 
acknowledged that said person signed this instrument, on oath stated that said person was 
authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it (as the 
_________________________ of _____________________, a _____________ 
corporation,) to be the free and voluntary act of such corporation/individual for the uses 
and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 Dated this _____day of _________________________, _____. 
 
    (Signature of Notary) 

       
Print Name 
Notary public in and for the state of 
______________, residing at ____________ 
My appointment expires: _______________ 

 



Page 44 of 51 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

(Description of Franchise Area) 
 

The incorporated area (entire existing territorial limits) of the City of Orting and 

such additional areas as may be included in the corporate (territorial) limits of the City of 

Orting during the term of this Franchise. 

 



Page 45 of 51 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

(Insurance Requirements) 
 

1. General Requirement.  Franchisee shall have adequate insurance at all times 
while Franchisee owns or operates Facilities in the Public Rights-of-Way, to protect the City 
against claims for death or injuries to Persons or damages to property or equipment which in 
any way relate to, arise from or are connected with the Work, the Facilities, or the activities 
of Franchisee, its employees, agents, representatives, contractors, subcontractors and their 
employees, within the Franchise Area. 

 
2. Minimum Insurance Limits.  The Franchisee shall maintain the following 

minimum insurance coverages and limits: 
 
2.1 Commercial General Liability: insurance to cover liability, bodily 

injury, and property damage.  The Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written 
on an occurrence basis, and shall provide coverage for any and all costs, including 
reasonable defense costs, and losses and damages resulting from personal injury, bodily 
injury and death, property damage, products liability and completed operations.  Such 
insurance shall include broad form and blanket contractual coverage, including coverage 
for the Franchise as now or hereafter amended.  Coverage must be written with the 
following limits of liability:   
 

$2,000,000 per occurrence,  
$4,000,000 general aggregate and  
$1,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate. 

 
2.2 Automobile Liability:  shall include owned, hired, and non-owned 

vehicles on an occurrence basis with coverage of at least $2,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
2.3 Workers Compensation Insurance:  shall be maintained during the 

life of this Franchise to comply with statutory limits for all employees, and in the case any 
work is sublet, the Franchisee shall require its contractors and subcontractors similarly to 
provide workers’ compensation insurance for all the employees.  The Franchisee shall also 
maintain, during the life of this policy, employer’s liability insurance with limits of 
$1,000,000 each occurrence.   

 
2.4 Excess or Umbrella Liability:  $5,000,000 each occurrence and 

$5,000,000 policy limit. 
 

3. Endorsements.  Franchisee Commercial General Liability insurance policies 
are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following: 

 
3.1 The Franchisee’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with 

respect to the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by 
the City shall be in excess of the Franchisee’s insurance and shall not contribute to it.   



Page 46 of 51 
 

 
3.2 Franchisee, through policy endorsement, shall waive its rights of 

subrogation against the City for all claims and suits.   
 
3.3 That the coverage shall apply separately to each insured against 

whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s 
liability. 

 
3.4 The Franchisee’s insurance shall name the City as an additional 

insured, to protect or insure as an additional insured, from and against Liabilities arising out 
of work performed in the Public Rights-of-Way under a grant of authority of the City.  

 
3.5 The Franchisee’s insurance shall include a requirement that the 

“railroad exclusion” be deleted or may include, in the alternative, ISO endorsement CG 24 
17 or the equivalent.  

 
3.6 The insurance coverages and limits provided herein shall not be 

canceled without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice first being given to the City, with 
the exception that ten (10) days’ notice shall be required for cancellation resulting from 
non-payment of premium.  If the insurance is canceled or reduced in coverage, Franchisee 
shall provide a replacement policy. 

 
4. Acceptability of Insurers.  Each insurance policy obtained pursuant to this 

Franchise shall be issued by financially sound insurers who may lawfully do business in 
the State of Washington with a financial strength rating at all times during coverage of no 
less than an “A-” and in a financial size category of no less than “VII”, in the latest edition 
of “Best’s Rating Guide” published by A.M. Best Company.  In the event that at any time 
during coverage, the insurer does not meet the foregoing standards, Franchisee shall give 
prompt notice to the City and shall seek coverage from an insurer that meets the foregoing 
standards.  The City reserves the right to change the rating or the rating guide depending 
upon the changed risks or availability of other suitable and reliable rating guides. 

 
5. Verification of Coverage.  The Franchisee shall furnish the City with signed 

certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the Automobile 
Liability, Commercial General Liability and Umbrella or Excess insurance of the Franchisee 
upon acceptance of this Franchise.  The certificate for each insurance policy is to be signed 
by a Person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The certificate for each 
insurance policy must be on standard forms or on such forms as are consistent with standard 
industry practices.  The Franchisee hereby warrants that its insurance policies satisfy the 
requirements of this Franchise. 

 
6. Deductible.  Commercial General Liability Insurance policies and coverage 

required herein may include a deductible; provided, however, that if Franchisee elects to 
include any deductible, Franchisee shall itself directly cover, in lieu of insurance, any and 
all City Liabilities that would otherwise in accordance with the provisions of this Franchise 
be covered by Franchisee insurance if Franchisee elected not to include a deductible.  Such 



Page 47 of 51 
 

direct coverage by Franchisee shall be in an amount equal to the amount of Franchisee’s 
actual deductible.   
 

7. No Limitation.  Franchisee’s maintenance of insurance policies required by 
this Franchise shall not be construed to excuse unfaithful performance by Franchisee or limit 
the liability of Franchisee to the coverage provided in the insurance policies, or otherwise 
limit the City’s recourse to any other remedy available at law or in equity. 
 
   
  
 



Page 48 of 51 
 

EXHIBIT “E” 
 

(Financial Security) 
 

1. Performance Bond. 
 
1.1 Franchisee shall provide to the City a faithful performance and 

payment bond in the initial amount of $50,000 to ensure the full and faithful performance of 
all of its responsibilities under this Franchise and applicable Laws, including, by way of 
example and not limitation, its obligations to relocate and remove its Facilities, to restore 
the Public Rights-of-Way and other property when damaged or disturbed, to reimburse the 
City for its Direct Costs and keeping Franchisee’s insurance in full force.   

 
  1.2 The performance bond shall be in a form with terms and conditions 
reasonably acceptable to the City and reviewed and approved by the City Attorney.   
 
  1.3 The performance bond shall be with a surety with a rating no less 
than “A-  VII” in the latest edition of "Bests Rating Guide," published by A.M. Best 
Company.   
 
  1.4 The Franchisee shall pay all premiums or costs associated with 
maintaining the performance and payment bond, and shall keep the same in full force and 
effect at all times.  If Franchisee fails to provide or maintain the bond, then the City, in its 
sole discretion, may require Franchisee to substitute an equivalent cash deposit as described 
below in lieu of the bond. 
  
  1.5 Franchisee’s maintenance of the bond(s) shall not be construed to 
excuse unfaithful performance by Franchisee, or limit the liability of Franchisee to the amount 
of the bond(s), or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any other remedy available at law or 
in equity. 
 

 1.6 The amount of the bond may, in the reasonable discretion of the 
City, be adjusted by the City to take into account (1) cumulative inflation, (2) increased 
risk to the City, (3) the experiences of the Parties regarding Franchisee compliance with its 
obligations under the Franchise, and (4) issuance of Site Specific Permits for installation 
of new Facilities.  Prior to adjusting the amount of the bond, the City shall provide 
reasonable notice to the Franchisee and an opportunity to provide comments, and the City 
shall review and consider such comments that are timely made.   
    
 2. Cash Deposit/Irrevocable Letter of Credit in Lieu of Bond.   
 
 Franchisee may, at its election substitute an equivalent cash deposit with an escrow 
agent approved by the City or an irrevocable letter of credit in form and content reasonably 
approved by the City Attorney, instead of a performance and payment bond.  This cash 
deposit or irrevocable letter of credit shall ensure the full and faithful performance of all of 
Franchisee’s responsibilities hereto under this Franchise and all applicable Laws.  This 



Page 49 of 51 
 

includes but, is not limited to, its obligations to relocate or remove its facilities, restore the 
Public Rights-of-Way and other property to their original condition, reimbursing the City 
for its costs, and keeping Franchisee’s insurance in full force.   
 
 In the event that the Franchisee fails to cure a Default as provided in Section 6 of 
the Franchise, the City may, at its option, draw upon the cash deposit or letter of credit up 
to the amount of the City’s costs incurred to cure Franchisee’s default.  Upon the City’s 
cure of Franchisee’s default, the City shall notify Franchisee in writing of such cure.   
 
 In the event that the City draws upon the cash deposit or letter of credit, Franchisee 
shall thereupon replenish the cash deposit or letter of credit to the full amount as specified 
herein or provide a replacement performance and payment bond. 
  



Page 50 of 51 
 

 
EXHIBIT “F” 

(Contractor/Subcontractor Insurance Requirements) 
 
 

1. General Requirement.  Prior to commencing and during the period of Work 
performed within the Franchise Area, Franchisee contractors and subcontractors (hereafter 
the “Contractors”) must have in place adequate insurance to protect the City against claims 
for death or injuries to Persons or damages to property or equipment which in any way relate 
to, arise from or are connected with this such Work. 

 
2. Minimum Insurance Limits.  The Contractors shall maintain the following 

minimum insurance coverages and limits: 
 
2.1 Commercial General Liability: insurance to cover liability, bodily 

injury, and property damage.  The Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written 
on an occurrence basis, , and shall provide coverage for any and all costs, including 
reasonable defense costs, and losses and damages resulting from personal injury, bodily 
injury and death, property damage, products liability and completed operations.  Coverage 
must be written with the following limits of liability:   
 

$1,000,000 per occurrence,  
$2,000,000 general aggregate and  
$1,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate. 

 
2.2 Automobile Liability:  shall include owned, hired, and non-owned 

vehicles on an occurrence basis with coverage of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
2.3 Workers Compensation Insurance: shall be maintained during the 

period of such Work to comply with statutory limits for all employees.   
 

3. Endorsements.  Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following: 

 
3.1 The Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with 

respect to the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by 
the City shall be in excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it.   

 
3.2 Contractor, through policy endorsement, shall waive its rights of 

subrogation against the City for all claims and suits.   
 
3.3 That the coverage shall apply separately to each insured against 

whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s 
liability. 

 



Page 51 of 51 
 

3.4 The Contractor’s insurance shall name the City as an additional 
insured, to protect or insure as an additional insured, from and against Liabilities arising out 
of Work performed in the Public Rights-of-Way under a grant of authority of the City.  

 
3.5 The Contractor’s insurance shall include a requirement that the 

“railroad exclusion” be deleted or may include, in the alternative, ISO endorsement CG 24 
17 or equivalent.  

 
3.6 The insurance coverages and limits provided herein shall not be 

canceled without thirty (30) days written notice first being given to the City, with the 
exception that ten (10) days’ notice shall be required for cancellation resulting from non-
payment of premium.  If the insurance is canceled or reduced in coverage, Franchisee shall 
provide a replacement policy. 

 
4. Acceptability of Insurers.  Each insurance policy required herein shall be 

issued by financially sound insurers who may lawfully do business in the State of 
Washington with a financial strength rating at all times during coverage of no less than an 
“A-”and in a financial size category of no less than “VII”, in the latest edition of “Best’s 
Rating Guide” published by A.M. Best Company.  In the event that at any time during 
coverage, the insurer does not meet the foregoing standards, Contractor shall give prompt 
notice to the City and shall seek coverage from an insurer that meets the foregoing 
standards.  The City reserves the right to change the rating or the rating guide depending 
upon the changed risks or availability of other suitable and reliable rating guides. 

 
5. Verification of Coverage. The Franchisee shall furnish the City with 

Contractors’ signed certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, 
including, but not necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the 
Automobile Liability, and Commercial General Liability policies of the Contractors.  The 
certificate for each insurance policy is to be signed by a Person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf.  The certificate for each insurance policy must be on standard 
forms or on such forms as are consistent with standard industry practices.   

 
6. No Limitation.  Contractor’s maintenance of insurance policies required 

herein shall not be construed to excuse unfaithful performance by Franchisee or limit the 
liability of Franchisee or contractor to the coverage provided in the insurance policies, or 
otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any other remedy available at law or in equity. 
 

 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-37 
SUBJECT: Bridgewater Plat Alternative 
Analysis 

Agenda Item #: AB16-37  
For Agenda of: 4/27/16  
Department: Transportation  
Date Submitted:  4/22/16   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $10,000 (up to, of 

Transportation Impact 
Fees)  

City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
The City is in conflict with the Bridgewater plat application.  The applicant’s plan does not allow for the 
City’s planned SW Connector.  The City has been financially unable at present to purchase or establish 
ROW over the property necessary for the connector.  The Mayor met with the applicant 4/21/16 to 
discuss possible solutions.  The applicant plans to continue to pursue the plat without making 
allowances for the SW Connector.  The Mayor proposed to the applicant that the City, given Council 
approval, would be willing to give up to $10,000 worth of future Transportation Impact Fees to allow 
the applicant to examine alternative designs for the plat.  The applicant was open to this option. 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to authorize the use of up to $10,000 of 
Transportation Impact Fees to reimburse the owner of the 
Bridgewater Plat for alternative plat layout analysis that would 
mitigate the impact of the City’s planned SW Connector roadway. 

 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-40 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2016-981, relating 
to nuisance regulations relating to dogs and 
cats; amending Orting Municipal Code 
section 6-3A-6A7. 

Agenda Item #:   AB16-40  
For Agenda of: 4/27/16  
Department:  Public Safety  
Date Submitted:  4/22/16   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0  
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Ordinance No. 2016-981 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
Currently a police officer can only fine a party when there have been two formal complaints about an 
animal nuisance – typically barking dogs – this amendment allows the intervening officer to fine the 
offending party if they see evidence of non-cooperation and are a witness to the nuisance.   
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  Recommended approval by the Public 
Safety Committee.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-981, 
relating to nuisance regulations relating to dogs and cats; amending 
Orting Municipal Code section 6-3A-6A7. 

 



1 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-981 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO NUISANCE 
REGULATIONS RELATING TO DOGS AND CATS; 
AMENDING ORTING MUNICIPAL CODE 
SECTION 6-3A-6A7; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, cities are authorized to protect the public health, safety and welfare of their 
communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, cities are authorized under state law to make and enforce by appropriate 

ordinances all such police and human health regulations that are not in conflict with state law; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Orting desires to make a change to Nuisance Regulations 

Relating to Dogs and Cats of the Orting Municipal Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to add an additional provision to a section of the Code 

which addresses frequent or habitual barking and/or other noises from dogs that disturb the peace 
and quiet of Orting citizens; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to adopt additional enforcement authority and update the 

Code; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to take steps now to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare of our community against this threat:   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  OMC Section 6-3A-6A7 Amended.  Orting Municipal Code Section 6-3A-
6(A)(7), “Nuisance Regulations Relating to Dogs and Cats; Violation; Penalty,” is hereby 
amended to read as follows:   



2 
 

 
 
6-3A-6A7: NUISANCE REGULATIONS RELATING TO DOGS AND CATS; 
VIOLATION; PENALTY:  
 

7. Any dog(s) frequently or habitually barking, howling, yelping, whining, or 
making other oral noises which unreasonably annoys or disturbs the peace and 
quiet of an occupant or occupants of at least two (2) separate residences within the 
city; or when a Police Department, Animal Control or Code enforcement officer 
hears firsthand any dog(s) barking, howling, yelping, whining or making other 
oral noises which unreasonably annoys or disturbs the peace and quiet the officer 
may issue a notice of infraction with penalties pursuant to OMC 6-3A-6B; 

 
Section 2.  Corrections by City Clerk or Code Reviser.  Upon approval of the City 

Attorney, the City Clerk and the code reviser are authorized to make necessary corrections to this 
ordinance, including the correction of clerical errors; references to other local, state or federal 
laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or ordinance numbering and section/subsection numbering. 

 
Section 3.  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 

this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 
the City, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication. 
 
 ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF 
ON THE 24TH  DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2016. 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
      
Joachim Pestinger, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
 
      
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 



3 
 

 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
     
John P. Long, Jr. 
Kenyon Disend PLLC 
City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 4/27/16 
Passed by the City Council: 4/27/16 
Ordinance No. 2016-981 
Date of Publication: 04/29/16 
Effective Date: 05/04/16 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-41 
SUBJECT: Interlocal Agreement for Jail 
Services with Nisqually Indian Tribe 

Agenda Item #:  AB16-41  
For Agenda of: 04/27/16  
Department: Police  
Date Submitted: 4/22/16  

 
Orting Staff & Professional 

Representatives 
 

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $65 / per night   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune  Amount Budgeted:   $130,000   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $101,229.56   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: Immediate Implementation 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake X BARS: 001-523-60-41-00 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: This contract will provide greater 

latitude & save money by allowing individuals to be 
booked at a lower cost facility.  (Currently cost can 
be as high as $157 per night at SCORE jail).  The 
Nisqually Jail Facility is $65 per night. 

Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  

Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Interlocal Agreement 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
Allows greater latitude for booking individuals at lower cost facility ($65/per night).  Contract 
approved by Nisqually Council and it has been reviewed (and was written) by our City Attorney.  
Additionally, this contracts provides another option for jail booking, when other facilities are full and 
unable to book individuals. 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  Discussed over the last several months. It 
has only been awaiting approval by the Nisqually Tribe for us to implement. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to approve the Interlocal Agreement 
with Nisqually Indian Tribe for jail services.  

 



















City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-42 
SUBJECT: Approval of Low Bidder, Frost 
Landscape, to provide landscape 
maintenance to city parks and right of way, 
and approval of contract 
 

Agenda Item #: AB16-42  
For Agenda of: 4/27/16 
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: 4/22/16   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $32,561.66  
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $31,140  
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: enter a timeline if applicable 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin X Fiscal Note: enter Finance information here if you 

want to embellish on fiscal impact and fund 
source. 

Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Bids, Contract 
Summary Statement:  
 
For the second year in a row the city has been unable to attract seasonal labor for the parks, even 
though the wages were increased and well-advertised.  As an alternative the city has gone out for bid 
for parks maintenance.  The low bidder was a local Orting landscape company, Frost Landscape who 
has performed other landscaping maintenance for the city in the past.  The cost of the contract from 
May through August is $32,140.  The budgeted price for 3 full time seasonal laborers is $31,140.  The 
City can expect additional savings by not using its mowers and equipment. 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: This went through the Parks, Cemetery, 
Lodging Tax Committee and recommend approval. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to approve Frost Landscape as the low 
bidder for maintenance of city parks and right of way for the 
amount of $32,561.66, and for the Mayor to enter into contract with 
the vendor. 

 



1 

 
 

SMALL PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 
 
Between: City of Orting    
Project: Park Landscape maintenance contract   
Commencing: May 1, 2016  
Terminating: August 31, 2016   
Amount: $32,561.66    
                                                                                                                                                                   
 THIS CONTRACT, is made and entered, by and between the CITY OF ORTING, a 
Washington municipal corporation (the "City"), and Frost Landscape, (the "Contractor”). 
 
 RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Contractor for the landscape maintenance 
for City Parks and Right of Way and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the contractor's offer was the lowest responsive 
and responsible quote submitted;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained in this 
Contract, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1.  Scope of Work to be Accomplished.  The Contractor shall perform the work described in 
Exhibit “A” of this contract (“Work”). The Contractor shall provide and bear the expense of all 
equipment, materials, work and labor of any sort whatsoever that may be required for the transfer of 
materials and for constructing and completing the Work provided for in this Contract, unless 
otherwise specified in the attached plans and specifications.   
 
2.  Contract Documents.  The Contract between the parties includes this contract, along with any 
Special and General Conditions, the project quote, L&I form Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing 
Wages - Public Works Contract, Certificate of Insurance naming City as additional insured, copy of 
Contractor's state contractor license and UBI number, copy of Contractor’s city business license, 
which are all hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract as if fully set forth 
herein, and shall be referred to collectively as the "Contract." 
 
 3.  Payment.  The Contractor shall submit properly certified invoices for the Work performed.  
The City agrees to pay the Contractor for the actual work completed to the satisfaction of the City 
and in conformance with this Contract.  Upon acceptance of payment, Contractor waives any 
claims against the City related to the Work covered by the invoice.    
 
The Contractor shall complete and return to the City Exhibit “B” or a W-9 Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification, prior to or along with the first invoice submittal. The City 



 
 

shall pay the Contractor for services satisfactorily rendered within ten days after City Council 
approval of such payment.  
 
4.  Warranties/Guaranty.   
 
4.1 Contractor warrants that all Work conforms to the requirements of the Contract and is free 
from any defect in equipment, material, design, or workmanship performed by Contractor or its 
Subcontractors and Suppliers and must receive City’s final acceptance of the work.  
 
4.2 If, within an applicable warranty period, any part of the Work is found not to conform 
to the Contract, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice 
from the City to do so. In the event the City determines that Contractor corrective action 
is not satisfactory and/or timely performed, then the City has the right to either correct the 
problem itself or procure the necessary services, recommendations, or guidance from a 
third party. All damages incurred by the City and all costs for the City's remedy shall be 
reimbursed by the Contractor. 
 
5.  Change Orders.  Changes to the scope of work to be performed, of the amount of the contract 
sum, or in the time for completion of the work, may be accomplished only by a written document, 
signed by the Contractor and the City.  Once effective, the Contractor shall proceed promptly with 
the Work as modified, unless otherwise provided in the change order. 
 
6.  Insurance.  The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection 
with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, 
employees or subcontractors.  The Contractor shall provide a Certificate of Insurance evidencing: 
 
6.1  Automobile Liability insurance with limits no less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per 
accident for bodily injury and property damage; 
 
6.2  Commercial General Liability insurance written on an occurrence basis with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate for personal injury, 
bodily injury and property damage.  Coverage shall include but not be limited to: blanket 
contractual; products/completed operations; broad form property damage; explosion, collapse and 
underground (XCU) if applicable; and employer's liability; and 
 
6.3 Worker’s Compensation insurance at the limits established by the State of Washington. 
Any payment of deductible or self-insured retention shall be the sole responsibility of the 
Contractor.   
 
The City shall be named as an additional insured on the insurance policy, as respects work 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor, and a copy of the endorsement naming the City as 
additional insured shall be attached to the Certificate of Insurance.  The Contractor's insurance 
shall be primary insurance as respects the City and the City shall be given thirty (30) days prior 
written notice of any cancellation, suspension or material change in coverage. 



 
 

 
7. Prevailing Wages/Prevailing Wages 
 
7.1  Prevailing Wages. The work under the Contract may be subject to the prevailing wage 
requirements of Chapter 39.12 RCW, as amended or supplemented.  If this Contract is subject to 
prevailing wage requirements, the Contractor, each of its subcontractor(s) and other person(s) 
doing any work under the Contract shall pay all laborers, workers or mechanics not less than the 
prevailing rate of wage for an hour’s work in the same trade or occupation in the locality within 
the State of Washington where such labor is performed as required by law.  The prevailing rate of 
wage to be paid to all workman, laborers or mechanics employed in the performance of any part 
of this Contract shall be in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 39.12 RCW, as amended, 
and the rules and regulations of the Department of Labor and Industries.  The rules and 
regulations of the Department of Labor and Industries and the schedule of the prevailing wage 
rates for the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries, are by reference 
made a part of this contract as though fully set forth herein.  These rates may be accessed on the 
internet at https://fortress.wa.gov/lni/wagelookup/prvWagelookup.aspx 
   
Pursuant to RCW 39.12, prior to payment by the City, the Contractor must submit -- on behalf of 
itself and each and every subcontractor at every tier -- a "Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing 
Wages," which must be approved by the Department of Labor and Industries prior to its 
submission.  Within fifteen (15) days of the final acceptance of the Contractor’s work under this 
Contract, the Contractor must submit -- on behalf of itself and every subcontractor -- an "Affidavit 
of Wages Paid". 
 

OR 
 
At the option of the City, the Contractor may use the combined Statement of Intent to Pay 
Prevailing Wages and Affidavit of Wages Paid form.  Contractor must meet the Washington State 
Department of Labor and Industries criteria for use of the form.   Combined forms may be 
requested from the City.     
 
8.  Assignment/Delegation.  The Contractor shall not assign this contract nor delegate any duties 
hereunder without prior written consent of the City, which consent may be withheld by the City in 
its sole subjective discretion for any cause whatsoever. 
 
9.  Applicable Law; Venue.  This Contract shall be subject to, and the Contractor shall at all times 
comply with, all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, and rules, including the 
provisions of the City of Orting Municipal Code and ordinances of the City of Orting.  Venue for 
any action arising from or related to this Contract shall be exclusively in Pierce County Superior 
Court. 
 
The Contractor will be required to obtain a City of Orting business license prior to performing 
any services and maintain the business license in good standing throughout the term of its 
agreement with the City.  
 



 
 

10.  Termination.  
 
10.1 The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Contract at any time, with or without 
cause, upon seven days prior written notice.  In the event of termination or suspension, all 
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports or other materials 
prepared by the Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall promptly be submitted to the City 
 
10.2 In the event this Contract is terminated or suspended, the Contractor shall be entitled to 
payment for all services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date 
of termination.   
 
10.3 This Contract may be terminated immediately if the Contractor's insurance coverage is 
canceled for any reason, or if the Contractor fails to timely perform the services or defaults on 
any other material obligations under this Contract. 
 
10.4 Any termination of this Contract shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal or 
equitable remedies it may otherwise have against the Contractor for the violation or 
nonperformance of any provisions of this Contract. 
 
11.  Indemnification/Hold Harmless.   The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, 
its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, 
damages, losses or suits, including attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with the 
performance of this Contract, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the 
City. 
 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Contractor and 
the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Contractor's liability hereunder 
shall be only to the extent of the Contractor's negligence.   
 
It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein 
constitutes the Contractor's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely 
for the purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the 
parties.  The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
Furthermore, the Contractor shall cause each and every Subcontractor to provide insurance 
coverage that complies with all applicable requirements of the Contractor-provided insurance as 
set forth herein, except the Contractor shall have sole responsibility for determining the limits of 
coverage required to be obtained by Subcontractors.  The Contractor shall ensure that the City is 
an additional insured on each and every Subcontractor’s Commercial General liability insurance 
policy using an endorsement at least as broad as the Insurance Services Office Additional Insured 
endorsement CG 20 38 04 13. 
 



 
 

12.  Independent Contractor.  For all purposes, the Contractor shall be deemed an independent 
contractor and shall not be deemed an employee or agent of the City for any purpose. 
 
13.  Wages and Other Costs.  The City assumes no responsibility for the payment of any 
compensation, wages, benefits, or taxes owed by the Contractor by reason of this Contract. The 
Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City, its officers, agents, and employees, harmless 
against all liability and costs resulting from the Contractor's failure to pay any compensation, 
wages, benefits or taxes. 
 
14.  Waiver.  Waiver by the City of any breach of any term or condition of this Contract shall not 
be construed as a waiver of any other breach. 
 
15.  Attorneys Fees.  In the event any action is brought by either party to enforce the terms of this 
Contract or for breach of this contract by the other party, the parties agree that the non-prevailing 
party shall pay to the prevailing party reasonable attorney fees and expert witness fees, costs and 
disbursements incurred by such party. 
 
16.  Entire Contract/Binding Effect.  This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties hereto. 
 
17.  Modification.  No amendment or modification of this Contract shall be of any force or effect 
unless it is in writing and signed by the parties. 
 
18.  Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is held invalid, the remainder shall not be 
affected thereby if such remainder would then continue to conform to the terms and requirements of 
applicable law, and shall continue in force and effect. 
 
19.  Notices.  Any notice required by this Contract may be delivered personally or mailed, certified 
with return receipt requested.  If mailed, notice shall be deemed given upon the first business day 
after the date of the postmark.  Notices shall be delivered or mailed to the following: 
 
TO CITY:      TO CONTRACTOR: 
 
City of Orting, and  
 
  

Contractor: Eric Frost 
 

   

Contact Name: Dean Kaelin 
 

Contact Name:  Eric Frost   

Street Address: 110 Train St. SE Street Address:  P.O. Box 335 
 

  

City, State, Zip: Orting, WA 98360 City, State, Zip:  Orting, WA 98360 
 
 

  

Phone: (360) 893-2219 Phone: (253) 226-8635     



 
 

 
Contact email: dkaelin@cityoforting.org 
 

Contact email: frostlandscape@comcast.net    

 
 
CITY OF ORTING, WASHINGTON  CONTRACTOR, WASHINGTON 
 

By: 
Joachim Pestinger  
   By: Eric Frost 

Title: Mayor 
 

Title: Owner 

Date: 4/27/16 

 

Date: 4/28/16 
   
 
 
Attest/Authenticated:     Approved as to Form: 
 
___________________________                            _______________________________ 
City Clerk       City Attorney 



7 

EXHIBIT A   
City of Orting 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES  

The purpose of this Bid is to secure a contractor for providing general maintenance activities at 
designated parks and the Foothills trail system located within the Orting City Limits.    
  
This Bid will begin with the general maintenance activities of the 10 parks and the foothills trail. 
Locations and name of the parks are on the map included with this bid sheet. 
 
General maintenance activity of all neighborhood parks will be maintained at the standard as 
identified in this Bid and as set forth by the City of Orting Public Works Director.  The Quality 
Control manager as identified by the City of Orting will monitor the standard and approve or 
disapprove payment.  
  
  
Park and Trail Locations:  
 
Williams Park-- SR 162 E - 0.23 ACRES 
IN VILLAGE GREEN.  ACCESS OFF OF LANE BLVD NW 
Williams Park - 0.23 Acres 
 
Foothills Trail-- STARTS AT WILLIAMS BLVD NW ALONG SR 162 E ENDS 
AT MEADOW LANE SE - SEE ADDITIONAL TRAIL AREAS FOR MORE 
ACREAGE 
Foothills Bike Trail - 10 Acres 
 
Whitehawk Park-- ACCESS FROM SR 162 E, TO WHITEHAWK BLVE NW AT 
ORTING AVE NW 
Whitehawk Park - 4 Acres 
 
Memorial Park-- WHITESELL ST SW (BETWEEN CORRIN AVE & SR 162 E 
SMALL SITTING AREA, REQUIRES WEEDING ONLY 
Memorial Park 0.017 Acre 
 
 
North Park-- SR 162 E AND CALISTOGA ST W 
North Park - 1.3 Acres 
 



 
 

MAIN PARK--INCLUDES 2 SECTIONS FROM CALISTOGA ST W TO 
BRIDGE ST SW 
Main City Park - 7.17 Acres 
 
TRIANGLE PARK--CORNER OF VARNER AVE SE & BRIDGE S 
Triangle Park - 0.19 Acres 
 
 
THREE CORNER PARK--HARMAN WAY S (SR 162 E) AND CORRIN AVE 
SE 
Three Corners Park - 0.06 Acres 
 
CHARTER PARK--WASHINGTON AVE S NEXT TO FIRE/POLICE DEPT 
Charter Park (skate park) - 11.88 Acres 
 
RAINIER MEADOWS PARK--BROWN WAY SE--ACCESS FROM 
WASHINGTON AVE S TO BROWN ST SE 
Rainer Meadows - 3.2 Acres 
 
CALISTOGA PARK & DOG PARK--CALISTOGA ST W & SKINNER WAY 
SW 
Calistoga Park - 6.29 Acres 
 
Work Requirements/ Required Services  
  

General Maintenance Activity Requirements  
  

 
1.      Mowing   

a. Typical Duties:  Inspect area for debris and pick up as necessary. Mow turf to 
appropriate height, approximately two and a half (2.5) to three (3) inches.  Identify 
work for other crews to perform.  

b. Frequency :  This equates to mowing each park, in the list above and the Foothills 
Trail, within the city limits, one (1) time per week for five (5) months (April-August).  
    

c. Quality & Performance Requirement:  When the work is done, turf is well 
manicured and aesthetically pleasing.  Turf is maintained at height of two and a half 
(2.5) to three (3) inches at all times.  

 



 
 

2.   Rough Area Mowing and Weed Eating –   

a. Description of Work:  All work associated with mowing of undeveloped areas. 
Weed eating areas missed or un-reachable by regular mowing.  Weed eating or 
trimming around tree bases, signs etc.. Work is done to reduce fire hazard, control 
noxious weeds, reduce rodent populations and enhance appearance.  

b. Typical Duties:  Inspect area for debris & litter, pick up as necessary. Mow or weed 
eat upon completion of inspection.  

c. Frequency :  Quality & Performance Requirement:  When work is done, field shall 
be evenly mowed with no skipping and is aesthetically pleasing. Mowing is typically 
performed with a tractor and flail type pull behind mower attachment or hand held 
weed eater. The finished cut height will not exceed (3) inches.  

 

  
3.   Turf Edging –  

a. Description of Work:  All work associated with edging of walkways, curbs, cement 
pads, shrub beds, and other areas requiring a well defined and manicured edge.  Work 
is performed to promote aesthetics and define edges in the areas specified.  

b. Typical Duties:  Inspect work areas for hazards and other work needs.  Edge 
sidewalks and flower beds, clean up edgings and haul off site.  Blow off hard surface 
areas.  Avoid damaging irrigation heads.  Do not engage power blower or edger if 
public is nearby.  

c. Frequency & Time of Year:    Work is generally completed once (1) every month 
during the turf growing season.    

d. Quality & Performance Requirement: Turf edges shall be sharply defined, straight 
and free of debris.  Turf will be maintained to within two (2) inches of asphalt edge 
and to within (1/4) one quarter inch of concrete edge.  

   
4.  Turf Debris Removal – 

a. Description of Work:  All work associated with cleaning turf and grounds with 
backpack or tractor mounted blowers, mechanical sweepers and manual raking.  
Remove leaves, storm debris and excess grass clippings.   

b. Typical Duties:  Remove debris from turf and load into container, haul debris from 
site for disposal.  

c. Frequency & Time of Year—As needed  
d. Quality &  Performance Requirement: Turf and grounds will be free of debris, 

well-manicured and aesthetically pleasing.  
 
5. Raking and Weeding Shrub Beds  

a. Description of Work:  All work associated with the raking and weeding of shrub 
beds using mainly manual methods. Work is performed to promote health of the plant 
materials and the aesthetics of the area.    



 
 

b. Typical Duties: Remove weeds and debris from shrub beds.  Remove all weed roots 
to prevent weed to reestablish.  Haul debris from site.   

c. Quality & Performance Requirement: Shrub beds are free of weeds and debris.   
 
 
6. Pavement Maintenance – 

a. Description of Work:  All work associated with cleaning of hard surface areas.  
Work is typically performed on walkways, parking lots, street fronts and concrete 
surfaces using backpack and tractor mounted blowers and mechanical sweepers.  

b. Typical Duties:  Clear surfaces of debris.  
c. Frequency :  Hard surfaces will be blown off or swept after each mowing  
d. Quality & Performance Requirement:  Hard surfaces will be clean and free of 

debris.  
 

 



11 

EXHIBIT B 
CITY OF ORTING 

Phone: (253) 226-8635 
Fax: None 

 
TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

 
In order for you to receive payment from the City of Orting, the must have either a Tax Identification 
Number or a Social Security Number.  The Internal Revenue Service Code requires a Form 1099 for 
payments to every person or organization other than a corporation for services performed in the course of 
trade or business.  Further, the law requires the City to withhold 20% on reportable amounts paid to 
unincorporated persons who have not supplied us with their correct Tax Identification Number or Social 
Security Number. 
 
Please complete the following information request form and return it to the City of Orting prior to or 
along with the submittal of the first billing invoice. 
 
Please check the appropriate category: 

 
     Corporation     Partnership      Government  

 
      Individual/Proprietor     Other (explain)      Consultant 

 
 

 
 

TIN No.:                                       Social Security No.:       
 
 
Print Name:                  
 
Title:                             
 
Business Name:           
  
Business Address:        
 
Business Phone:                      
 
 
 
                                                                    
Date      Authorized Signature (Required)  

 



12 

 














































	Council Agenda 042716_REV
	Council Minutes 041316
	ConsentAgenda042716
	AB16-33
	AB16-33, Closed Record Hearing- Village Green VI
	City Of Orting

	Village Green Div 7 Phase 1 Final Plat_PCandStaff Report

	AB16-34
	Agenda Bill No. 16-34, Animal License Fees
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Resolution No  2016-19, Animal License Fees rev
	CITY OF ORTING
	WASHINGTON
	RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 19
	CITY OF ORTING
	ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:
	Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk

	Animal License Fees Comparison 2015
	Sheet1


	AB16-35
	Agenda Bill No. 16-35, 2017-2022_6YRTIP
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Resolution No. 2016-20, Year TIP 2017-2022
	CITY OF ORTING
	WASHINGTON
	RESOLUTION NO. 2016-20
	CITY OF ORTING
	ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:
	Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk
	John P. Long, Jr.,
	Kenyon Disend, PLLC
	City Attorney

	6-year TIP OrtingFINALClean
	Sheet2


	AB16-36
	Council Agenda Bill No. 16-36, Astound Franchise Agreement
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Ordinance No. 2016-983, Astound Orting Franchise-final
	ORDINANCE NO. 2016-983
	Article 5. PROTECTION OF THE CITY AND PUBLIC.
	RECITALS


	AB16-37
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	AB16-40
	Agenda Bill No. 16-40, Animal Control 
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Ordinance No. 2016-981, Amend 6-3A-6A7 Nuisance Regulations
	ORDINANCE NO. 2016-981


	AB16-41
	Agenda Bill No. 16-41, Nisqually Jail Contract
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Contract - Nisqually Jail - City of Orting - Mar 2016

	AB16-42
	Agenda Bill No. 16-42, Landscape Bid _Frost
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Frost Landscape - Small Public Works Contract
	7.1  Prevailing Wages. The work under the Contract may be subject to the prevailing wage requirements of Chapter 39.12 RCW, as amended or supplemented.  If this Contract is subject to prevailing wage requirements, the Contractor, each of its subcontra...
	1.      Mowing
	2.   Rough Area Mowing and Weed Eating –
	3.   Turf Edging –
	4.  Turf Debris Removal –
	5. Raking and Weeding Shrub Beds
	6. Pavement Maintenance –
	TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER


	doc01918720160422113529


